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(In HK$ millions unless otherwise specified)

Turnover

Gross profit

Gross margin

Operating profit (notes 1 & 2)

Operating margin (notes 1 & 2)

Profit attributable to shareholders (notes 7 & 2)
Return on sales (notes 1 & 2)

Cash and bank balances less bank loans
Working capital (note 1)

Total assets (note 2)

Total liabilities (notes 2 & 3)
Shareholders’ funds (notes 2 & 3)

Earnings per share — Basic (HK cents) (notes 1, 2 & 4)
Interim dividend per share (HK cents) (note 4)

Special interim dividend per share (HK cents)

Final dividend per share (HK cents) (note 4)

Special final dividend per share (HK cents) (note 4)

Return on average total assets (notes 1 & 2)

Return on average shareholders’ funds (notes 1 & 2)
Inventory turnover on sales (days) (note 5)

Current ratio (times) (note 1)

Number of shares outstanding (in thousands) (note 4)
Market capitalization

Directly managed stores
Number of stores (nhote 6)
Retail floor area (in thousands of square feet) (note 6)
Comparable store sales (decrease)/increase (note 7)

Total stores (note 6)
Inter-segment purchases percentage

Notes:

1. Figures from 2004 are adjusted for the adoption of HKAS 17 “Leases” and HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” which are effective for accounting years commencing on or

after January 1, 2005

2. Figures for 2002 are adjusted for the adoption of SSAP 12 “Income Taxes” (revised)
which is effective for accounting years commencing on or after January 1, 2003

3. Figures from 1999 to 2000 are adjusted for the adoption of SSAP 9 “Events after the
Balance Sheet Date” (revised) which is effective for accounting years commencing on

or after January 1, 2001

4. Figures for 1999 are adjusted for the effect of the 1-to-2 share subdivision

5. Inventory held at year end divided by full year turnover times 366 or 365 days
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2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

5,048 4,950 4,372 4,413 4,003 3,389 3,688 3,479 3,431 3,092

2,439 2,357 2,178 2,243 2,035 1,634 1,677 1,544 1,516 1,352

48.3% 47.6% 49.8% 50.8% 50.8% 48.2% 46.7% 44.4% 44.2% 43.7%

325 384 376 518 491 364 385 372 425 351

6.4% 7.8% 8.6% 11.7% 12.3% 10.7% 10.7% 10.7% 12.4% 11.4%

311 295 205 406 387 266 328 377 416 360

6.2% 6.0% 4.7% 9.2% 9.7% 7.8% 9.1% 10.8% 12.1% 11.6%

454 474 665 827 689 784 614 494 747 803

742 736 862 1,029 861 911 861 798 1,014 960

2,557 2,935 2,984 2,970 2,717 2,555 2,419 2,371 2,110 1,913

651 909 894 755 684 685 564 625 511 456

1,855 1,927 1,987 2,122 1,954 1,799 1,794 1,695 1,658 1,449

20.80 19.80 13.80 27.50 26.70 18.50 22.80 26.30 29.30 25.65

4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.00 1.50 4.50 4.50 4.25 3.25

2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.50 3.00 - - - -

3.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 6.00 5.50

- 10.00 15.00 15.00 13.00 12.00 10.00 5.00 5.00 8.50

11.5% 10.3% 7.3% 15.2% 15.9% 11.8% 14.7% 17.3% 21.4% 21.6%

16.4% 15.1% 10.0% 19.9% 20.6% 14.8% 18.8% 23.2% 27.7% 27.9%

23 33 35 31 30 24 26 30 32 28

2.3 1.9 2.1 2.6 2.4 2.5 2.8 2.3 3.1 3.2

1,491,647 1,491,513 1,490,853 1,489,631 1,450,592 1,442,199 1,440,345 1,436,029 1,430,683 1,413,118

2,909 5,578 6,336 6,480 7,072 5,192 4,393 4,954 5,150 5,652

1,036 1,000 962 914 811 550 473 456 367 317

1,046 995 957 918 846 650 599 598 466 359

(2%) 2% (3%) (1%) 7% (9%) (2%) (4%) 4% 21%

1,970 1,895 1,767 1,694 1,585 1,363 1,256 1,159 920 740

11% 16% 26% 30% 27% 28% 26% 24% 25% 22%

6. FHAHF 6. Figures as at year end

7. ERBIEELEZ BB FRENEEH = 1EAH2 I 7. For stores which were operated for the full 12 months in each of the two fiscal years

under comparison

8. PSSR 8. Operating results on continuing operations:
(BREFRIGFEESN LB H BT REN) (In HK$ millions unless otherwise specified) 2008 2007
B Turnover 4,710 4,429
EAH Gross profit 2,362 2,239
EFE Gross margin 50.1% 50.6%
Feg=Sil Operating profit 330 381
A = Operating margin 7.0% 8.6%
& 3R {5 % F Profit attributable to shareholders 290 294
§H 6 [B] 7] K Return on sales 6.2% 6.6%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(Chairman and Chief Executive)
MAH Chuck On, Bernard

Non-Executive Director

Professor LEUNG Kwok

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Barry John BUTTIFANT
KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, Jp
LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp
GROUP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

LUI Chi Hung

COMPANY SECRETARY

YUNG Mei Yee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Barry John BUTTIFANT
KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, Jpr
LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp
Professor LEUNG Kwok

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Barry John BUTTIFANT
LEE Peng Fei, Allen, JpP
Professor LEUNG Kwok

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

YUNG Mei Yee

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
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Hong Kong lawyers
Robertsons
Arculli Fong & Ng

PRC lawyers
King & Wood

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

Tricor Abacus Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
BNP Paribas
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Dear Shareholders:

The “global financial tsunami” is creating unprecedented uncertainty
in all sectors of the economy. Its adverse impact is felt across all
segments in the retail sector. Although it does not hurt Giordano as
badly as “luxury” goods, it nonetheless creates challenges calling for

our agility and quick responses.

In the final quarter of 2008, the Group implemented cash conservation
moves to ensure that its future growth would not be hampered by cash
flow difficulties. These moves included slashing retail and distribution
inventory levels, measured in turnover on sales, from 26 days at the
end of 2007 to 23 days at the end of 2008. Other measures included a
review of all expenditures for cost-effectiveness and a retrenchment of
outlets not contributing positive cash flow. These moves resulted in net
cash and bank balances position of HK$454 million at the end of 2008.

The Group substantially disposed of its interests in manufacturing
during the year, in line with a long term retail and distribution focus. As
such, the Group has been able to exploit cost reduction opportunities
which often arise during economic downturns. Several major
collaborations have been achieved.

Commencing from the fourth quarter of 2008, we saw a sharp decline
in consumer sentiment. This traditionally peak selling season of retailers
could not have generated reasonable sales without compromising
margins. Coupled with our resolve to turn safety inventory into cash,
both gross margins and operating profits were lower than those
budgeted prior to the “global financial tsunami”.

Consequently, the Group’s operating profits from continuing operations
for 2008 decreased by 13.4 percent to HK$330 million. Profit
attributable to shareholders, due to the gains on disposals of the
Group’s manufacturing interests earlier in the year, rose by 5.4 percent
to HK$311 million.
Group’s operations in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”

| refer you to a more detailed discussion of the

section of the Annual Report.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #



RIEAKE 2 -BEREEEK @URSEMROER
R-BeBARRREZTSHAEERN T —FHERE
ZESREZBAME ETEEERKERERE
FECARAEFMREFRREBMNENZREH
T -REEFERKZTBRPER I EEH ALK
BRHEANIRNTEREZZERDHERE &
FeRRRBERYBEERBE = EREEH
KR A 2 o B3R & BB B OB 6 0 B A il K2 4
PER S FREEMIL 2FRERSMEERST
FREENMHOM REXSBESZO+T AR

REBEXE —EH HEEDABESRET HE
FORARBEIER - XEREMIED 152 E I
ERB T sE AEMSHECHRNETR-
ERBRM-—ERGEERZFEUHEERBL X
AARERE HPIEHEE TP T BIEME
R ER A ST NFHAEEBEMS
HE—EER AAMARS AKRENT=ZB%
BETtReH MAKETRSRNAZTE BK
RIEBLR A EERRER-

ERAEZBEN S REBECKMARE  RELKRM
BHOBTMEEHBEREFR AARZREY 5
BRRHENLEES SRNAERPRIAEE
URERBR -BPMERIEESHIRERT
RXBAEEZET BHMSAESERERZ
IBEMEERSARB ZMEEBA LRS-

RE AKECHEZLCEAIEKSE BBET
BRPBEARETS  6IEHHERRE  NREE
AEANFERIF R UG REER-

2 Bl
FE

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #

The Group’s dividend philosophy has consistently rested on
returning surplus cash to shareholders. Surplus cash is based on the
Board’s outlook of the Group’s cash requirements in the next fiscal
period having considered operating net cash flow and investment
opportunities in the maintenance and enhancement of future revenue
producing capacity. Prudently evaluating the uncertainties ahead
and the Group’s continued push in the expansion of our Mainland
China retail and distribution channels, the Board has proposed a final
dividend of 3.0 HK cents per share. With the interim cash dividend of
4.5 HK cents per share and special interim dividend of 2.0 HK cents
per share declared and paid, this brings the total cash dividend for the
year to 9.5 HK cents per year, reflecting a payout ratio of 45.7 percent.

As of writing and as expected, consumers are still in a state of shock
and consumer sentiments have not yet returned to normal. There are
positive signs in some of our markets benefiting from re-merchandising
of their stores with fresh stock. Our historically low inventory days on
sales also give me optimism that we can be quite nimble in launching
timely products in tune with the pulse of our consumers. Although
2009 will be one that tests us all, | am happy to report that spirit of
the Group’s 8,300 staff is high and that solid actions are taking place
aimed at thriving in these chaotic times.

On a personal note, | am deeply touched by the voluntary sacrifices
made by our loyal staff and suppliers since the beginning of this greed-
induced financial and economic crisis. During my long service with the
Group, | had never experienced the extent of such selfless solidarity
seen today. Our shareholders and the Board have also continued to
show their trust and support to the Group’s staff, allowing them to fully
dedicate their effort serving the Group’s stakeholders in these very
difficult times.

Finally, the Group has resolved to turn this crisis into an opportunity
for its long term growth initiative vested in Mainland China focus, new
supply chain strategy, strengthened management mix, and design
innovation.

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman

March 26, 2009

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Back in 2007, the Group made a strategic decision to disengage
from manufacturing to focus on retailing, and in 2008 the Company
substantially disposed of its holdings in two manufacturing businesses,
including that in Placita Holdings Limited (“Placita”),
and the principal business unit of the Group’s Garment Trading &

a subsidiary
Manufacturing Division (the “Manufacturing Division”). As a result,
the Group substantially exited from the garment manufacturing line
of business. Under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the
Company is required to present Placita’s results separately under the
heading “Discontinued Operations” so the discussion below pertains to
the Group’s continuing operations and excludes Placita’s results unless
otherwise stated.

The year got off to a good start, with the Group achieving turnover
increase of 34.1 percent in Mainland China and 11.6 percent overall
in the first half. Although growth slowed with the arrival of the financial
tsunami at Asian shores, the Group still managed to increase its
Mainland China turnover by 25.2 percent for the full year, which helped
the Group to achieve a 6.3 percent increase in its turnover from
continuing operations to HK$4,710 million in 2008.

Despite our aggressive clearance of fall/winter stock during the fourth
quarter, the Group’s gross margin remained at about 50 percent and
gross profit increased by 5.5 percent in 2008.

HILEXFREZ
AR Continuing Operations 2008 2007 YOY Change
(BB EE TAEN)
(In HK$ millions)

ZERDHERR Retail & Distribution turnover 4,709 4,420 +6.5%
KIKE 5 Kk &E Garment Trading & Manufacturing

EE turnover 119 109 +9.2%
REBARRBEEIE Intra-group elimination 118 100 +18.0%
AEEZER Group turnover 4,710 4,429 +6.3%
REBEEF Group gross profit 2,362 2,239 +5.5%
REEFERE Group gross margin 50.1% 50.6% -50 bps E 2
TE R HEHMZ Retail & Distribution comparable

AP miHE R store sales’ -1.5% +2.4% N/A

! ERMIEIELL BB FRAEE R+ — A EREE
P

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m BB R 2 7

! For directly managed stores which were open for the full 12 months in each of the two
fiscal years under comparison
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Management quickly implemented a comprehensive program of cost
discipline when market conditions began to weaken last year. In
addition to a wage and hiring freeze outside Mainland China, high rental
and shop overhead were also contained by a reduction of 30 stores in
Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore. As a result, we managed to limit
the increase in operating expense to 7.1 percent in the second half and
10.6 percent for the full year. Other income rose by 33.0 percent to
HK$141 million (2007: HK$106 million) due to the HK$33 million PRC
reinvestment tax refund we received in the first half.

The Group’s operating profit from continuing operations decreased
by 13.4 percent and operating margin decreased by 160 basis points
to 7.0 percent. The Group’s EBITDA from continuing operations
decreased by 2.6 percent to HK$528 million (2007: HK$542 million)

BERAENT a8 ;) mEAEBTDARE=XF] and its EBITDA margin fell by 100 basis points to 11.2 percent (2007:
THE—EBEEHZES 2T —H=-_(ZZTZTLF:  12.2 percent).
BoZtTZBZ)-
HEEXFREZ
BERSEER Continuing operations 2008 2007 YOY Change
(LB HETRERN)
(In HK$ millions)
ZERDH Retail & Distribution
i Operating profit 324 384 -15.6%
g R = Operating margin 6.9% 8.7% -180 bps & 24
RKESZRHE Garment Trading & Manufacturing
# i Operating profit 6 () +300.0%
5 g R & Operating margin 5.0% N/A N/A
rEE Group
5 Operating profit 330 381 -13.4%
B g Rl & Operating margin 7.0% 8.6% -160 bps & 24
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Profit contribution from the Group’s manufacturing joint venture Speedy
Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“Speedy
Garment”) was lower due to its divestment in 2008. Profit contribution
from our Middle East associate also declined slightly. However, the
decrease was more than made up by increased profit contribution
from our South Korean joint venture. Accordingly, total after-tax
profit contribution from the Group’s jointly controlled and associated
companies increased to HK$36 million (2007: HK$35 million).

Taxation expense decreased to HK$82 million (2007: HK$112 million)
due mainly to the reduction in the PRC’s corporate income tax rate
from 33.0 percent to 25.0 percent under the new Enterprise Income
Tax Law which took effect on January 1, 2008. The Group’s effective
tax rate was 24.8 percent (2007: 29.4 percent) or 27.6 percent if we
exclude the non-taxable PRC reinvestment tax refund from the Group’s
income.

The Company recorded a gain of HK$17 million from the Speedy
Garment disposal. This, together with the reduction in income taxation
expense, largely overcame the reduction in operating profit so that
profit attributable to shareholders from continuing operations decreased
by only 1.4 percent to HK$290 million (2007: HK$294 million).
Excluding the PRC reinvestment tax refund and the gain on the Speedy
Garment disposal, profit attributable to shareholders from continuing
operations would have seen an 18.4 percent year-on-year decline.

On August 25, 2008, the Group substantially divested its
51.0 percent interest in Placita, the Group’s principal garment
manufacturing subsidiary. The Company recorded a gain of
HK$24 million from the Placita disposal but this gain was
partially offset by the HK$5 million in operating loss incurred by
Placita during the year (2007: operating profit of HK$3 million).
Overall, the Group’s total profit attributable to shareholders from
continuing and discontinued operations was HK$311 million
(2007: HK$295 million), an increase of 5.4 percent.
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Cash generated from operations (which included the HK$33 million
PRC reinvestment tax refund) decreased by HK$77 million
to HK$458 million. This, however,
HK$84 million reduction in overseas tax paid, attributable largely to

was more than offset by a

the absence of non-recurrent charges recorded in 2007. Therefore,
net cash inflow from operating activities increased by HK$4 million to
HK$347 million (2007: HK$343 million).

Net cash outflow from investing activities decreased by HK$49 million
to HK$104 million (2007: HK$153 million) due mainly to the
HK$42 million in proceeds received from the Speedy Garment disposal
plus a HK$33 million decrease in capital expenditure to HK$109 million
(2007: HK$142 million) which was partially offset by a HK$39 million
increase in rental prepayments.

Finally, net cash outflow for financing activities decreased by
HK$86 million to HK$281 million (2007: HK$367 million) due mainly to a
HK$74 million decrease in dividends paid and additional bank loans of
HK$29 million.

The Group’s prudent financial management and rigorous cost
and inventory controls enabled it to maintain a healthy net cash
2008
all of which is deposited with commercial

and bank balance of HK$454 million as at December 31,
(2007: HK$474 million),
banks.

Inventory position has also remained strong. At the end of the year, the
Group’s inventories decreased to HK$297 million (December 31, 2007:
HK$441 million), with the reduction attributable to the Placita disposal
(Placita’s inventories were HK$127 million as at December 31, 2007)
and Management’s swift and decisive action to control and clear
inventories. Inventory turnover on sales’ improved to 23 days (2007:
33 days for the Group as a whole or 26 days if we excluded Placita).

! Inventory held at year end divided by full year turnover times 366 or 365 days

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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On December 31, 2008, the Group had total liabilities of
HK$651 million (2007: HK$909 million), with the decrease attributable
to the deconsolidation of Placita. Placita’s total liabilities as at
December 31, 2007 were HK$196 million. Shareholders’ equity was
HK$1,855 million (2007: HK$1,927 million). The Group’s current ratio
improved to 2.3 times (2007: 1.9 times) and its gearing improved to
4.2 percent (2007: 5.0 percent).

Capital expenditure during the year was HK$109 million (2007:
HK$142 million), representing 31.4 percent (2007: 41.4 percent) of net
cash inflow from operating activities.

The Group had financing facilities totaling HK$347 million at the end
of the year (2007: HK$368 million), of which only HK$78 million in
revolving loan facilities had been drawn and were outstanding.

Following the Placita disposal, only two small manufacturing
subsidiaries engaged in just-in-time stock replenishment remain in
the Group’s Manufacturing Division. Together they generated full year
turnover of HK$119 million (2007: HK$109 million), practically all
of which consisted of sales to Giordano Group companies, and an
operating profit of HK$6 million (2007: operating loss of HK$3 million).
The Group is in the process of consolidating these two subsidiaries to

improve efficiency and profitability.

On June 2, 2008 the Company reduced its interest in Speedy Garment,
the Company’s garment manufacturing joint venture, from 49.0 percent
to 9.9 percent for a consideration of HK$42 million and recorded a
one-time gain on disposal of HK$17 million. As a result of the disposal,
Speedy Garment’s after-tax profit contribution to the Group decreased
to HK$3 million (2007: HK$10 million). The Group held a 9.9 percent
shareholding in Speedy Garment as at December 31, 2008.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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Buoyed by our results in Mainland China, turnover at the Group’s
Retail Division grew by 6.5 percent to HK$4,709 million (2007:
HK$4,420 million) on slightly lowered gross margin of 49.9 percent
(2007: 50.6 percent). The Retail Division’s operating profit decreased
by 15.6 percent to HK$324 million (2007: HK$384 million) and its
operating margin was 6.9 percent (2007: 8.7 percent).

B K RE Mainland China 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HER (BB EET) Sales (HK$ millions)’ 1,689 1,349 1,090 987 952
BYRRIEERE (Er)?  Sales per sq. ft. (HK$)? 3,400 2,900 2,400 2,400 2,400
AP T 2 HE R Comparable store sales

& ane increase’ 6.1% 15.2% 8.5% 5.5% 6.9%
ZE®EE(FAR) Retail floor area (sq. ft.)* 816,800 690,700 605,100 585,600 557,800
PIm 8 H Number of outlets* 909 820 729 706 671

! BREETHHEERZHEFH
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! Including net sales to authorized dealers

2 On a weighted-average basis for directly managed outlets

3 In local currency for directly managed outlets which were open for the full 12 months
in each of the two fiscal years under comparison

4 Total directly managed and authorized dealer outlets as at December 31

Despite softening consumer confidence, the Group maintained its
growth momentum in Mainland China, with turnover increasing by
25.2 percent in 2008 to HK$1,689 million. Comparable store sales
were up by 6.1 percent and full year gross margin expanded by
180 basis points. We added 89 stores in Mainland China to expand our
distribution network to 909 outlets at the end of 2008.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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Hong Kong

(including Macau)
Sales (HK$ millions)
Sales per sq. ft. (HK$)

Comparable store sales
increase/(decrease)’

Retail floor area (sqg. ft.)°

Number of outlets?®

Singapore
Sales (HK$ millions)
Sales per sq. ft. (HK$)

Comparable store sales
increase/(decrease)?

Retail floor area (sqg. ft.)°

Number of outlets?
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2008 2007
850 892
9,000 7,800
(1.7%) 8.1%
98,700 110,900
82 92
2008 2007
368 390
6,900 6,900
(7.7%)  (10.9%)
54,300 57,300
51 53

On a weighted-average basis

2006
873

7,600

5.4%
117,300

98

2006
403

7,700

(11.9%)
55,100

53

2005
867

7,400

4.4%
119,500

101

2005
4083

8,300

(1.2%)
50,500

48

2004
810

7,100

11.0%
113,700

92

2004
391

8,700

12.6%
48,600

47

In local currency for outlets which were open for the full 12 months in each of the two

fiscal years under comparison
As at December 31

stores respectively in Hong Kong and Singapore in 2008.
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As markets that are highly reliant on tourist traffic, both Hong Kong and
Singapore’s performance were heavily affected by the global financial
tsunami. For the year as a whole, Hong Kong’s turnover decreased by
4.7 percent to HK$850 million and Singapore’s declined by 5.6 percent
to HK$368 million. We reduced our network by ten stores and two

#



=¥ Taiwan 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HER (BEEHET) Sales (HK$ millions) 634 649 658 732 707
BFTRFRIFERE ()’ Sales per sq. ft. (HK$)! 3,300 2,800 2,800 3,000 2,900
AT eI 2 HERE Comparable store sales
% hn/ O > )? increase/(decrease)? (3.2%) (4.2%) (9.1%) (5.8%) 0.8%
TEEE(FAR)? Retail floor area (sq. ft.)? 204,900 218,700 235,800 243,900 245,800
FImEBs Number of outlets® 192 210 239 237 236
! RN E R E 1 On a weighted-average basis
2 W & & B 5 E 5 R 2 BT B JE AR 2 In local currency for outlets which were open for the full 12 months in each of the two
+=1EAZFIm fiscal years under comparison
3 R+-FA=+—H s As at December 31
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The restructuring of our Taiwanese operations started to show
results, with turnover growing by 4.7 percent and comparable store
sales increasing by 2.2 percent in the first half of 2008. For 2008 as
a whole Taiwan recorded a 2.3 percent decrease in its turnover to
HK$634 million and achieved a 36.9 percent reduction in its year-end
inventory compared to the previous year. We reduced our network by
18 locations in 2008 to 192 and will further consolidate our network in
2009 to rightsize the operations.

b A F R

&/ Cr )

Year-on-year

SHER (B HET) Sales (HK$ millions) 2008 2007 increase/(decrease)
BN Australia 218 235 (7.2%)
BRAE Malaysia 168 151 11.3%
e Indonesia 175 169 3.6%
Zx Thailand 126 121 4.1%
H b5 Others 481 464 3.7%

FREE HERFEZEEDZE SRS TR
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The economies of Malaysia, Indonesia and Thailand were all impacted
to varying degrees by the financial tsunami. Our operations in Indonesia
and Thailand were especially affected, the former from the decline in
commodity prices plus the depreciation of the Indonesian Rupiah and
the latter from a protracted political crisis which hurt tourism, a vital
part of the Thai economy. Nevertheless, for 2008, the Group’s sales in
Malaysia, Indonesia and Thailand together increased by 6.3 percent to
HK$469 million.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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The decline in commodity prices and the devaluation of the Australian
Dollar hurt consumer confidence and spending. We reduced our
network by five locations in 2008 to 56 outlets at the end of the
year. As a result, our sales in Australia decreased by 7.2 percent to
HK$218 million in 2008.

[F) South Korea 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HER (BEEHET) Sales (HK$ millions) 835 982 1,014 995 895
F¥HREES (Fr)’  Sales per sq. ft. (HK$)' 6,200 6,700 7,500 6,300 5,900
AEMm e HERE Comparable store sales
o/ Cr A )? Increase/(decrease)? (4.1%) (8.6%) (6.5%) (4.0%) (13.4%)
TEMmME (FHR)? Retail floor area (sq. ft.)? 133,700 145,600 135,600 157,000 150,600
FImEBs Number of outlets? 167 173 148 168 172
! I E R E 1 On a weighted-average basis
2 K E i G E  IERMEER RS B FERNEEH 2 In local currency for outlets which were open for the full 12 months in each of the two
+=1EAZFIT fiscal years under comparison
3 R+=—HA=4+—H s As at December 31
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Sales and margins at our South Korean joint venture continued to
improve in the first half but the gains were overcome in the second
half as consumer confidence waned due to the declining Korean
Won. For the year as a whole, turnover in South Korea decreased
by 15.0 percent to HK$835 million but improved merchandising and
cost controls plus a well-timed property disposal boosted its bottom
line. As a result, after-tax profit contribution from our South Korean
jointly controlled company increased by HK$9 million to HK$22 million
(HK$12 million excluding the gain on the property disposal). South
Korea reduced its network by six locations to 167 outlets at the end of
the year. On December 31, 2008, the Group held 48.7 percent in its
South Korean jointly controlled company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #



R Middle East 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HER (B FET) Sales (HK$ millions) 539 465 359 332 288
F¥HREESE (Fr)  Sales per sq. ft. (HK$)' 3,100 3,100 2,700 3,100 3,200
AL MIT 2 E R Comparable store sales
1 hn/ O 2 )? increase/(decrease)? 10.1% 10.9% 1.6% 2.4% 6.1%
TEmE (FFR)? Retail floor area (sq. ft.)? 176,600 149,900 132,600 107,500 90,800
FiT &t E° Number of outlets? 157 142 129 107 89
! JEINE TR EASE ! On a weighted-average basis
2 WU B E S E ERHEIEES BB FERNEEH 2 In local currency for outlets which were open for the full 12 months in each of the two
+=1EAzFd fiscal years under comparison
3 RI+=—ZA=+—H s As at December 31
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Our business in the Middle East saw growth slowing in tandem with
declining oil prices. Full year turnover nonetheless increased by
15.9 percent to HK$539 million but after-tax profit contribution from our
Middle East associated company decreased slightly to HK$11 million
(2007: HK$12 million) due to higher operating costs. The Group
held a 20.0 percent shareholding in its Middle East associate at
December 31, 2008.

We continued to build our operations in India, adding seven stores to
expand our network to 12 stores at the end of 2008.

Turnover of the core Giordano brand grew by 8.1 percent to
HK$4,006 million. We added a total of 102 Giordano and Giordano
Junior outlets, bringing our global network to 1,825 by the end of 2008.

Turnover of Giordano Ladies grew by 8.2 percent to HK$265 million
while comparable store sales held steady against the year before.
During the period we added seven outlets to bring the brand’s network
to 46 by the end of 2008.

In 2008 the Group expanded the Giordano Concepts network by
19 stores to bring the total number to 33 at the end of the year.
Turnover grew by 11.9 percent from network expansion but with
existing stores impacted by the slump in consumer confidence
comparable store sales declined by 11.4 percent in 2008.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS



AN [E 4 48 ¥ 1T Bluestar Exchange 5 % BBSXZ

As part of the Group’s ongoing program of re-branding Bluestar

MEBENE BEMTHBEE—FER -+ —M  Exchange to BSX, we further reduced the network by 21 stores to 96
EEZENFRZAT B AU £%E% A at the end of 2008. As a result, turnover came in at HK$206 million,
BE_EBRAEBEEL R_ZEZTLFTHKEDZ  24.8 percent lower than 2007.
ZA g
AhBMAmZEER
/)
=E -0 Comparable store sales
Turnover increase/(decrease)’
ZERDH Retail & Distribution P4
EB P9 Division 2008 2007 Change 2008 2007
(KB aETBEMN)
(In HK$ millions)
Giordano /& Giordano &

Giordano Junior Giordano Junior 4,006 3,707 +8.1% (0.9%) 2.0%
Glordano Ladlies Giordano Ladies 265 245 +8.2% (0.1%) 9.1%
Giordano Concepts Giordano Concepts 217 194 +11.9% (11.4%) N/A
BSX/Bluestar Exchange BSX/Bluestar Exchange 206 274 -24.8% (1.2%) (2.3%)
Hity Others 15 - N/A N/A N/A
P& Division Total 4,709 4,420 +6.5% (1.5%) 2.4%

! ERBEELEZ B FRERNEE A EEERE 7 For directly managed outlets which were open for the full 12 months in each of the

Fim two fiscal years under comparison

PHEMSBHS TS EEREEITERHFZT  The global financial tsunami has caused unprecedented havoc and
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uncertainty in all sectors of the economy, and its impact has already
surpassed that of the 1997/98 Asian financial crisis. All our markets
have been affected, including Mainland China which was previously
expected to remain unscathed. With bad economic news still emerging
from the US and Europe, even by the most optimistic estimates a
turnaround in the global economy is not likely to happen at the earliest
until late in 2009, if not the middle of 2010. The Group has not been
immune and the first two months of 2009 have seen its turnover
declining by 12.9 percent compared to the same period last year.
Notwithstanding the challenges ahead, Management believes the
present crisis also presents many opportunities and is confident of the

Group’s long term prospects.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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Over the years, Giordano has built an enviable reputation among
customers for unwavering quality, value and service — no matter in
good times or bad. But the new circumstances require swift action.
Therefore, we have positioned our marketing and merchandising

programs to emphasize “basics”, “essentials” and “value” to capitalize
on a re-alignment in consumer priorities. We will continue to invest
in our design and product development capabilities, and to this end
we will open a new design center in Southern China during the first
half of 2009. Located in close proximity to many of our key vendors,
the center will eventually house about 200 design and product
development staff and allow for greater and closer collaboration with

our key suppliers.

Giordano has also built an organization centered on operational
efficiency, effective cost controls and rigorous cash and inventory
management. When market conditions began to weaken last year, we
quickly tightened our cost, inventory and cash controls by implementing
a wage and hiring freeze outside Mainland China, reducing our store
network by a total of 30 in Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore and
aggressively clearing fall/winter stocks in the fourth quarter to keep
cash and inventory levels healthy. As a result the Group entered
2009 with approximately HK$454 million (December 31, 2007:
HK$474 million) in net cash and bank balances, while inventory
turnover on sales for 2008 was 23 days, a notable improvement. The
coming months will continue to see tightened expense budgets and
other spending controls to protect the bottom line and maintain a
strong balance sheet.

With export markets in the doldrums, we expect to be able to drive
better bargains with our suppliers and have targeted to achieve
significant FOB cost savings in 2009. We are also pushing for
substantial reduction in freight and other operating costs.

Although its economy has slowed in the last few months, China’s long
term growth story remains intact. As such, the Group will continue
to focus its attention and resources there, especially on growing our
business in second tier and smaller cities where Giordano is relatively
under-represented at the moment. Meanwhile competition for prime
retail space in key metropolitan centers throughout the region has
begun to ease and rentals are beginning to revert to more reasonable
levels. Even as we are rationalizing our store network in Hong Kong,
Taiwan and Singapore, we are also carefully evaluating opportunities to
upgrade our store portfolio by trading up into better locations as they
become increasingly available and affordable.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The current crisis truly is a time which tests an organization’s financial
and operational mettle. Based on our brand equity, focus on innovation,
prudent cash and inventory management and disciplined execution,
we are confident that Giordano will weather the challenges ahead
to emerge stronger and better positioned for long term growth and
success.

The recruitment, retention, development and motivation of quality
employees have always been the foundation of our success. The
Company offers competitive remuneration packages and generous,
goal-oriented bonuses to different levels of staff. Senior managers are
also offered generous incentive bonus schemes and share options as a
means to reward and retain a high caliber management team.

Although a competitive remuneration package is important, numerous
studies and experience have shown that it is not sufficient in
attracting and retaining staff. Values, fairness and opportunities for
further professional and personal development are also important
considerations for people. As such, the Group invests heavily not only
in a comprehensive staff training and development programs in basic
sales and service, but also other topics such as management training,
leadership seminars and other programs designed to address our
people’s personal and professional development needs. The Company
has also instituted an Employee Self Learning Program to foster
individual initiative and responsibility for development. Performance in
the program is an important consideration in evaluating an employee’s
total performance for compensation and career advancement.

On December 31, 2008, the Group had 8,300 employees (2007:
12,100 employees, of which 3,900 were employed by Placita). Total staff
cost (excluding directors’ emoluments but including employees’ share
option charges) amounted to HK$768 million (2007: HK$733 million).
During the year, 41 million share options (2007: 8 million share options)
were granted to employees of the Group.
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It is the Company’s intention to return surplus cash to its shareholders
through the regular payment of dividends and, in line with its dividend
philosophy, the Company has been paying an ordinary dividend
amounting to about one-third of its earnings plus a special dividend
the amount of which may vary depending on cash on hand, future
investment requirements and other considerations.

After due consideration of the uncertain economic outlook and the
Group’s continued investment to expand in Mainland China, the
Board has resolved to recommend to shareholders the payment of a
final dividend of 3.0 HK cents for the year ended December 31, 2008
(2007: final dividend of 5.0 HK cents and special final dividend of
10.0 HK cents) per share. Taking into account the interim dividend of
4.5 HK cents (2007: 4.5 HK cents) per share and the special interim
dividend of 2.0 HK cents (2007: 2.0 HK cents) per share paid on
September 23, 2008, total 2008 dividend amounted to 9.5 HK cents
(2007: 21.5 HK cents) per share, representing a payout of 45.7 percent
of 2008 per share earnings. Subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the final dividend will be
payable on or about Friday, June 12, 2009 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Wednesday, June 3, 2009.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman), aged 56, is the Group’s
Chief Executive and a member of the Compensation Committee of the
Company. He joined the Group in 1987, became the Chief Executive
on February 8, 1994, and was elected Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Group on August 10 in the same year. Dr. Lau is also
an independent non-executive director of Hsin Chong Construction
Group Ltd. and Fairwood Holdings Limited, both of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Dr. Lau holds a Doctorate degree
in Business Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and an MBA degree from the University of Calgary in Canada. He is a
member of The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. Prior to
joining the Group, Dr. Lau had over 12 years of accounting experience
in the private and public sectors in Canada.

Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard (Executive Director), aged 59, joined
the Group in 1996 and was appointed to the current position of the
Company on June 14, 1999. Mr. Mah is also the Executive Chairman
of the Group’s operations in Mainland China and Group Executive
Director — Global Business Development. He graduated from the
University of Alberta in Canada with a bachelor degree in Business
Administration and is a member of The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Mah had gained extensive
experience in industrial and commercial investment sectors and had
held senior government positions in accounting and auditing in Canada
for 15 years.
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Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (/Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 64, joined the Group in May 1991. He is also chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Compensation Committee
of the Company. He is an independent non-executive director
of Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited and Alltronics Holdings
Limited. Mr.
Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. and China Nepstar Chain
Drugstore Ltd., both of which are NASDAQ and New York Stock
Exchange-listed companies, respectively. Mr. Buttifant was the

Buttifant also serves as a non-executive director of

Executive Director — Finance of the Mission Hills Group (“MHG”)
but became a Consultant to the Group in December 2008.
Mr. Buttifant continues as a Director of Hsin Chong Construction
Group Ltd. ("HCCG”) and Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”).
In February 2009, Mr. Buttifant joined KLC Kennic Lui & Co,
a professional accounting firm, as a Principal of the firm and Managing
Director of KCL Transactions Limited. Prior to joining MHG, he was
the managing director of Hsin Chong International Holdings Limited,
a controlling shareholder of both the construction company HCCG
(which was acquired by MHG in November 2007) and a property
management service company, Synergis (which was acquired by HCCG
in September 2008). Mr. Buttifant was also an alternate director to both
public companies. Mr. Buttifant was an operating partner of Baring
Private Equity Asia Limited. He was also the managing director of
Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (“Wo Kee Hong”) from 2001 to 2002
and was the Advisor to the board of directors of Wo Kee Hong from
November 2002 to April 2004. Prior to joining Wo Kee Hong, he was
the managing director of IDT International Limited for over eight years
and had worked for Polly Peck Group and Sime Darby Hong Kong
Limited for more than 11 years in the capacity of finance director and
managing director. Mr. Buttifant is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered Management Institute, the
Hong Kong Management Association and the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, Jpr (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 58, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive
Director on April 26, 2004 and is a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr. Kwong graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree in Physics and
Mathematics and was awarded a Master of Philosophy degree
in Economics and Politics of Development by the University of
Cambridge, England. He has served in the Government of Hong Kong
for 27 years and held positions principally in the economic and
financial fields. He was the Secretary for the Treasury from 1995 to
1998, with responsibility for the public finances, and Secretary for
Information Technology and Broadcasting from 1998 to March 2000,
with responsibility for information technology, telecommunications
and broadcasting. He left the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in March 2000 to join the Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited as executive director and first
Chief Executive, following the demutualization and merger of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Futures Exchange
and their associated clearing houses and retired in April 2003. From
January to June 2004, Mr. Kwong was the managing director of
Hsin Chong International Holdings Ltd.. He was a non-executive
director of Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (“Hsin Chong”)
from August 2004 to August 2007 and Synergis Holdings Limited
(“Synergis”) from September 2004 to September 2007, the shares of
both Hsin Chong and Synergis are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong. Prior to acting as a non-executive director of Hsin Chong
and Synergis, he was an alternate director of Hsin Chong from January
to August 2004 and Synergis from January to September 2004.
Mr. Kwong was also an independent non-executive director of
CDC Corporation, a NASDAQ listed company, from June 2003 to
September 2005 and the managing director of Hongkong Sales (Int’l)
Limited from July 2004 to July 2006. He is currently an executive
director of Macau Legend Development Ltd., a company based in
Macau and engaged in the leisure industry.

Mr. Kwong is a non-official Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong and
has been awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He holds a number of public
service positions, including Vice Patron of The Community Chest of
Hong Kong.
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Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jr (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 68, joined the Company on September 10, 1999. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee and the Compensation Committee of
the Company. He holds an honorary degree of Doctor of Engineering
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and an honorary degree
of Doctor of Laws from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. Lee
is currently an independent non-executive director of AMS Public
Transport Holdings Limited, ITE (Holdings) Limited, Playmates Holdings
Limited, Sam Woo Holdings Limited, VXL Capital Limited and Wang On
Group Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong.

Dr. Lee was formerly a deputy of Hong Kong SAR, the 9th and 10th
National People’s Congress, PRC, a member of the Hong Kong
Legislative Council from 1978 to 1997, a senior member of the Hong
Kong Legislative Council from 1988 to 1991 and a member of the Hong
Kong Executive Council from 1985 to 1992. He has taken an active role
in public service.

Professor LEUNG Kwok (Non-executive Director), aged 50,
was appointed as Non-executive Director of the Company on
July 1, 2008. He is a member of the Compensation Committee and
the Audit Committee of the Company. He was the Board Advisor and
provided consulting services to the Group for more than 20 years.
Professor Leung received his Ph.D. in Psychology from University of
llinois, Urbana-Champaign, U.S.A. He holds a chair in management
at the City University of Hong Kong. In addition to his international
reputation for his scholarly work, he has extensive consulting
experience with a wide range of organizations and government
departments in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Mr. LUI Chi Hung, aged 47, is the Group Chief Financial Officer.
He holds an MBA degree from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and a Master degree in Finance from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, and an associate member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Certified
General Accountants Association of Canada. He joined the Group in
2002 and has over 26 years of experience in finance and accounting
field.

Dr. NGAN Lei Tjen, aged 46, is the Group Human Resources Director
and Principal Consultant of Lau, Wong & Associates Consultants
Limited. She holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a BBA degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. Ngan is also a dipldmée
HEC Paris, France. She is a US Certified Public Accountant, a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
the Certified General Accountants Association of Canada. Dr. Ngan is
also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (UK). She
joined the Group in 2006 and has 20 years of broad experience in the
banking field.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to
the highest standard of corporate governance within a sensible and
practical framework in the firm belief that the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence are essential for upholding the
interests of all stakeholders and maximizing shareholder value.

The Board has long been committed to excellence in corporate
governance and reviewed and upgraded the Company’s Code on
Corporate Governance on a regular basis even before The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
introduced the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”). The CG Code came into effect during the accounting
period from January 1, 2005 and has two levels of compliance.
The Code Provisions are mandatory for listed companies while
Recommended Best Practices are for guidance. Any deviations from
the Code provisions are to be explained. In light of the amendments
2009, the Board
accordingly updated the Company’s Code on Corporate Governance in
January 2009 to bring it into closer alignment with the CG Code. The

following items highlight where the Company’s corporate governance

to the Listing Rules that took effect on January 1,

practice surpasses, attains or deviates from the CG Code:

Surpass

° Independent Non-executive Directors comprise half of the Board,
exceeding the CG Code Recommended Best Practices minimum
of one-third.

e  The Company has a Risk Management Committee that reviews all
material controls and risk management functions and reports to
the Board twice a year, surpassing the CG Code Code Provisions.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Attain

e The Board includes three Independent Non-executive Directors, in
line with the requirement under the Listing Rules.

e  The Company maintains appropriate director’s and officer’s liability
insurance in line with the CG Code Recommended Best Practices.

e Any Independent Non-executive Director who serves more than
nine years will be subject to a separate resolution on further
appointment to be approved by shareholders in line with the CG
Code Recommended Best Practices.

e The Company adopts the CG Code guidelines on the review of
internal control system.

e The Company meets all the CG Code Code Provisions except the
deviations below.

Deviate

e The Company deviates from the CG Code Code Provisions by
having the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive performed by
the same person. The advantages of doing so and the balancing
measures that the Company has adopted to protect shareholder
interests are discussed in detail under the section Chairman and
Chief Executive of this report.

e The Chairman and the Managing Director are not subject to
retirement by rotation according to the Bye-Laws of the Company
(the “Bye-Laws”).

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. It sets the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the standard of corporate governance of
the Company. It also decides on matters related to annual and interim
results, major transactions, director appointments or re-appointments,
and dividend and accounting policies. The Directors, individually and
collectively, are committed to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders.
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Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton retired as Independent Non-executive
Director on May 14, 2008, Mr. FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles resigned
as Executive Director effective on July 15, 2008 and Professor
LEUNG Kwok, previously the Independent Board Advisor of the
Company, was appointed Non-executive Director with effect from
July 1, 2008. As at the date of this report, the Board is comprised of
three Independent Non-executive Directors, one Non-executive Director
and two Executive Directors. The Non-executive Directors bring a
diverse range of experience and expertise to give effective guidance
and a fresh, outside perspective to all major decisions facing the Group.
To assist them in discharging their duties, the Directors have free and
direct access to both the Company’s external and internal auditors
and procedures are in place to allow Directors to obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense. The Company has
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in line with the CG
Code Recommended Best Practices.

Given the overall composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge
and expertise that each Director brings individually, the Group is of the
belief that the Board is appropriately structured to provide sufficient
checks and balances to protect the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The Board will review its composition regularly to ensure
that it has the proper balance and diversity of expertise, skills and
experience to continue to effectively guide and oversee the business of
the Company. Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are
set out on pages 22 to 26 of this annual report.

As an important part of good corporate governance, the Board
established two Board Committees, namely the Audit Committee and
the Compensation Committee. In addition, a Management Committee
and a Risk Management Committee were set up to support the Board
and the Board Committees. The composition of the Board, the Audit
Committee and the Compensation Committee is given below. The
Management and Risk Management committees are discussed in the
relevant sections in this report.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Members of the Board

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton
(retired on May 14, 2008)
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, Jp
Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp

Non-executive Director
Professor LEUNG Kwok
(appointed on July 1, 2008)

Executive Directors

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(Chairman and Chief Executive)

Mr. FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles
(resigned on July 15, 2008)

Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships with each other except that
Mr. Buttifant and Dr. Lau both serve on the board of Hsin Chong
Construction Group Ltd. as non-executive director and independent

non-executive director respectively.

It is the Board’s opinion that these relationships do not affect the
Directors’ independent judgment and integrity in executing their roles

and responsibilities.

None of the Independent Non-executive Directors owned any shares of

EREEE

HEZES

Audit Compensation

Committee Committee
v
v v
v
v v
v

the Company up to the date of this report.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has confirmed with the Company
in writing his independence from the Company in accordance with
the relevant guidelines. The Company therefore considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

The Board holds four regular meetings a year and additional meetings
as and when required. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in
advance to facilitate the fullest possible attendance. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda of the Board
meetings and each Director is invited to present any businesses that
he wishes to discuss or propose at such meetings. Furthermore,
all Directors have access to the Company Secretary for advice
and services to ensure that board procedures and applicable rules
and regulations are adhered to. Board papers are circulated to all
Directors and other attendees not less than three days before the
Board meetings to ensure timely access to relevant information. Draft
and final versions of the minutes are circulated to all Directors for
comments. Any Director who is unable to physically attend any Board
meeting may participate electronically by conference call or via alternate
arrangements in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Pursuant to the Bye-
Laws, Board approval may also be obtained by way of circulation of
a resolution in writing on urgent matters when convening a Board
meeting is not practicable. Sufficient information and explanatory
materials will be provided to the Directors at the same time when a
resolution in writing is circulated.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, four Board meetings were
held during which the Board reviewed the quarterly performance results
and discussed the Group’s strategy going forward, as well as other
business. In addition, six sets of resolutions in writing were passed.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Attendances of Directors of the full Board meetings in 2008 are as
follows:

HERB/ERBITRE

Board Meeting Meetings attended/held

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton

(retired on May 14, 2008) 1/1
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 4/4
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBs, JpP 4/4
Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp 3/4

Non-executive Director
Professor LEUNG Kwok

(appointed on July 1, 2008) 3/4*
Executive Directors
Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

(Chairman and Chief Executive) 4/4
Mr. FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles

(resigned on July 15, 2008) 1/2
Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard 4/4

Professor LEUNG Kwok attended one Board meeting in the capacity of an
Independent Board Advisor before being appointed as a Non-executive Director and
two Board meetings as Non-executive Director after the said appointment.

In order to facilitate free and open discussion of issues, Independent
Non-executive Directors also meet without the presence of Executive
Directors from time to time.

Instead of establishing a nomination committee in line with CG
Code Recommended Best Practices which would only have limited
representation, the Company intentionally involves the full Board in
the appointment of new Directors. The Board takes into account
criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment in its
deliberations.
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In accordance with the Bye-Laws, any new Director (other than the
Chairman or the Managing Director) appointed by the Board is subject
to retirement and re-election by shareholders at the next general
meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or at
the next annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of an
addition to their number) following his appointment. At each annual
general meeting, one-third (or the number nearest to but not exceeding
one-third) of the Directors (other than the Chairman or the Managing
Director) will retire from office by rotation and every Director (other than
the Chairman or the Managing Director) is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for
a specific term of three years and subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election pursuant to the Bye-Laws. To further strengthen the
standard of corporate governance, the Company follows the CG Code
Recommended Best Practices and requires any re-appointment of an
Independent Non-executive Director who has served on the Board for
over nine years to be subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by shareholders. The Board will set out in this annual report the reasons
it considers such Director to continue to be independent and should be
re-elected.

None of the Directors of the Company is aware of information that
would reasonably indicate that the Company is not in compliance
with the CG Code, except that (i) the roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive are vested in the same person (Code Provision A.2.1); and (ii)
the Chairman and the Managing Director are not subject to retirement
by rotation (Code Provision A.4.2).

Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton retired as Independent Non-executive
Director on May 14, 2008 and Professor LEUNG Kwok, at the time
the Independent Board Advisor of the Company, was appointed as
Non-executive Director with effect from July 1, 2008. The Board
considered a number of outside candidates in addition to Professor
Leung and ultimately decided on Professor Leung because it was felt
his background as a well respected professor in management would
provide a different and useful perspective to the Board’s decision-
making.

Mr. FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles resigned as Executive Director
effective on July 15, 2008 and the Board decided not to appoint a
replacement after failing to identify suitable candidates either within or
outside the Company.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Currently Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, holds the positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive. In view of Dr. Lau’s extensive experience in the
industry and deep understanding of the Group’s businesses, the Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
in Dr. Lau provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership,
allows for more effective planning and execution of long term business
strategies and enhances efficiency in decision-making. The Board also
believes that the Company already has a strong corporate governance
structure appropriate for its circumstances in place to ensure effective
oversight of Management. The main elements of this structure include:

° Having Independent Non-executive Directors comprise half of the
Board;

e Having all three Independent Non-executive Directors and the
Non-executive Director to comprise the Audit Committee;

e Ensuring that all Non-executive Directors have free and direct
access to both the Company’s external and internal auditors and
independent professional advice where necessary;

e Having a “whistle-blowing” mechanism in place to allow the
Group’s staff members to anonymously and confidentially report
any suspected acts of fraud or gross misconduct by senior
management, including that of the Chairman and Chief Executive,
to the Head of Internal Audit, the details of which are discussed
under the section “Internal Control”.

The Board believes that these measures enable our Independent Non-
executive Directors and Non-executive Director to rigorously supervise
the Group’s Management and to provide effective control of key issues
relating to strategy, risk and integrity. The Board continually reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure to assess
whether any changes are necessary.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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The Audit Committee comprises all three Independent Non-
executive Directors and the Non-executive Director and is chaired
by Mr. Buttifant, a qualified accountant with extensive experience
in financial reporting and controls. The committee is responsible for
the appointment of external auditors, review of the Group’s financial
information and oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures. It is also responsible for reviewing
the interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending
To this end, the Audit Committee

has unrestricted access to both the Company’s external and internal

them to the Board for approval.
auditors. Its terms of reference are available on request and also
accessible on the Company’s website at http.//www.giordano.com.hk/
web/HK/investors/2005AC. padf.

The Audit Committee reviews financial reporting and internal control
matters in the Audit Committee meeting which is held at least twice
a year. The Group Chief Financial Officer, the Chairman of the Risk
Management Committee, the Head of Internal Audit, the Company
Secretary and representatives of the External Auditor of the Company
are expected to attend meetings of the Committee. At the discretion of
the Committee, other members of Management may also be invited to
attend its meetings. In 2008, the Audit Committee held two meetings
and the attendance record, on a named basis, is set out below:

HERXB/ERBTRE

Audit Committee Meeting Meetings attended/held

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton

(retired on May 14, 2008) 1/1
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 2/2
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, Jp 2/2
Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp 2/2

Non-executive Director
Professor LEUNG Kwok
(appointed on July 1, 2008) 1/1

During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the audit strategy
summary and the final results for the year ended December 31, 2007
and the interim accounts for the six months ended June 30, 2008 with
external auditors; as well as the activities of the Group’s Internal Audit
Department and its internal audit report, findings and recommendations
on the Group’s business operations.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The Company established a Compensation Committee to deal with
matters of remuneration. It is composed of two Independent Non-
executive Directors, the Non-executive Director and the Chairman.
It is responsible for reviewing and determining the remuneration,
compensation and benefits of Directors and senior management.
The committee members elect one member to act as chair at the
commencement of each meeting. When the remuneration package
of an individual Director is under review, the Director in question is
required to abstain from voting to avoid any conflict of interest. The
terms of reference of the Compensation Committee are available
on request and also accessible on the Company’s website at
http./7www.giordano.com.hk/web/HK/investors/2005CC. pdf.

HERB/EBRTRE

Compensation Committee Meeting Meeting attended/held

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 1/1
Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp 11

Executive Director
Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(Chairman and Chief Executive) 0/1

Non-executive Director

Professor LEUNG Kwok 1/1*

* The meeting was held before Professor LEUNG Kwok being appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Board. Therefore Professor LEUNG Kwok attended the
meeting in the capacity of an Independent Board Advisor.

In 2008, the Committee held a meeting to review the remuneration
and bonus of the Chairman and Chief Executive, to confirm the 2007
guaranteed bonus to the Chairman and to ratify and approve the 2007
bonus payment to directors and senior management. The Chairman
and Chief Executive absented himself from attending the said meeting
and abstained from voting to avoid any conflict of interest. Attendance
record of the meeting, on a named basis, is set out above. Two other
sets of resolutions in writing were passed approving the annual fees
of Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Director
respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #



ARARIAR-AEMEENHMESER &
UEHBERERATHNEERZ - Bt KRAFZ
BREHRFMAHRE N YEFEARAZAE
B REMRA -ARANBEFMEREEZ RS
ERBEEE EEAILRARMXNZHEE BT
EARRBIREWMB AR 2BE - B B E M
H b5 B RO B AR MIBES ARAKRR R A
BAMIEF H R -

wmE—ffa W MEZEERISLATHESZ
¥ REERIFVTEFTAURKRER/ARBMNH
MEBETNBRERSAENTHN ZE@EENE
= BRALKAAMANEE JFRTESH
NHHOER BE BN IEE URRARQF
H Al 75 A0 B R A

AR BREE (BFELERITRARNIITES)
ETH B H BN B B N TR AT
FRRL M ROBHEMUREAHE BT
SEEE

BEFHMEEEENERT S R KRB (HL0
BEEN) SFEEBRUNELRFSMRBER
BARBZEHMWEEK ARBMEENEALRR
VAR T35 18 AN E P B B AT E ARt - AR
AeERRTEENEN TESRREWFEER
EHImEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #

The Company understands that a reasonable and comprehensive
remuneration package is an important factor in attracting, retaining
and motivating high quality personnel. As such, it is the Company’s
policy to ensure that remuneration is competitive and aligns with the
Company’s goals, objectives and performance. The Company takes
into consideration a number of relevant factors including salaries paid
by comparable companies, job responsibilities, duties and scope,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries,
market practices and financial and non-financial performance in
determining its remuneration policy.

As discussed in the previous section, the Compensation Committee
reviews and determines the remuneration of the Directors. To ensure
that Non-executive Directors are appropriately paid for their time and
responsibilities to the Company, the Committee considers factors
such as fees paid by comparable companies, time commitment, the
responsibilities and likely workload of the Non-executive Directors, and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company.

The Company’s remuneration structure for its employees, including the
Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Director, is composed
of fixed compensation, cash performance bonuses, variable cash
incentives, long-term incentives, and retirement schemes as discussed
below.

Fixed compensation includes an employee’s base salary, allowances
and benefits (e.g. medical). Base salary and allowances are set and
reviewed annually for each position taking into consideration the
Company’s remuneration policy, the Company’s and the individual’s
performance as well as market conditions and practices. Benefits
are reviewed regularly and determined largely on the basis of local
standards and practices.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Employees are also eligible to receive an annual cash bonus based on
business unit and individual performance. The bonuses awarded to the
Chairman and Chief Executive, the Executive Director and members
of senior management are reviewed annually by the Compensation
In 2008,
accounted for 50.7 percent of the total remuneration of the Chairman

Committee. the cash performance bonus component
and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors. Please refer to note
9(a) to the financial statements for details. In addition, the Company
operates sales and business-related incentive schemes to motivate
certain staff such as front-line sales associates to achieve specific sales

or business targets of the Company.

The Company also operates a share option scheme to provide long-
term incentives to reward and retain a high calibre management team.
During the year, the Company granted approximately 41 million share
options to selected members of management under the scheme.
The details of the scheme, together with information on options
exercised and outstanding in respect of the Executive Directors as
at December 31, 2008 under the scheme are set out in the section of

Share Option Information of this annual report.

Pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the
Company participates in an MPF scheme which has been registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

The total remuneration of the members of the Board (excluding share-
based payments) is shown below:

(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
Fees 1 1
Salaries, allowances and
other benefits 8 8
Variable remuneration related
to performance 9 12
Share Options 1 -
Retirement scheme contributions - -
19 21
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The total remuneration (excluding share-based payments) of Non-
executive, Executive Directors (two of whom were ex-directors) and the
five highest paid employees (two of whom were Executive Directors) fell
within the following bands:

2008 2007

A AEL

Remuneration Number Number
HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 5 4
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 -
HK$2,000,001 - HK$3,000,000 2 3
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 1 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000 1 -
HK$12,000,001 — HK$13,000,000 1 -
HK$13,000,001 — HK$14,500,000 - 1
11 9

All Non-executive Directors’ emoluments all fell within the first
remuneration band. Please refer to note 9(a) to the financial statements
for details.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to a Management Committee.
The Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board and
comprises the two Executive Directors who currently serve on the
Board and a director of the Group’s Middle East and India operations.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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One of the Board’s main areas of responsibility is the Company’s
system of internal controls. To this end, policies and procedures
have been put in place to safeguard assets against unauthorized use
or disposition; to maintain proper accounting records and enhance
the reliability of financial reporting and to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. Such policies and procedures are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and to manage and minimize rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the Group’s operational systems. The
Group’s internal control system includes following major components:

e An organizational and governance structure with defined
responsibility and delegated authority;

e Operational budgets review prior to being adopted;

e  Stringent policies and procedures for the appraisal, review and
approval of major capital and recurrent expenditures;

° Regular reports of operations results against budgets to the Board;

e A “whistle-blowing” mechanism to allow the Group’s staff
to anonymously report any suspected acts of fraud or gross
misconduct by senior management, including that of the Chairman
and Chief Executive, to the Head of Internal Audit who will refer the
report to the Company’s Independent Non-executive Directors for
further action; and

e  Strict internal procedures and controls for the handling and
dissemination of price sensitive information.
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The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the
Group’s internal control system and the reviewing of its effectiveness
to a Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management Committee
composed of five members including one Executive Director,
Mr. Mah, together with the Group Chief Financial Officer, the Head
of Internal Audit and two senior management representatives. It
reviews all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions in accordance
with the code provisions on internal control of the Company’s Code
on Corporate Governance and reports to the Board twice a year.
The Risk Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board.
The Committee reported to the Board in its 2008 Interim Report on
Internal Control Systems that in all material respects the system of
internal control over risks associated with the retail and manufacturing
operations of the Group was sufficient, appropriate and operated

effectively on a continuous basis.

Co-operating closely with the Risk Management Committee, the
Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal controls of the Group. It provides specific guidance and
communications on risk and internal control matters. Adopting a risk-
based approach, the Internal Audit Department implements the audit
plan approved by the Audit Committee and Management. Regular
reports are made directly to the Audit Committee and Management.
The Audit Committee has free and direct access to the Head of Internal

Audit without reference to the Chairman or Management.

The Company adopted in August 2004 and updated in January 2009
a Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Directors on terms
required by Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All directors confirmed
that they complied with the aforesaid code throughout the year.

The Company also adopted in March 2005 and updated in
January 2009 a Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by
Specified Employees to govern securities transactions of those
employees who may possess or have access to price sensitive
information. The said code covers areas such as prohibitions and
conduct in the dealing of Company’s securities, avoidance of conflict
of interests and confidentiality of Company’s information, etc. These
employees have complied with the aforesaid code throughout the year.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, its operational results
and cash flow for that period. The Company’s financial statements are
prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for
ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently, and that where judgment has been applied and estimates
made, they are prudent and reasonable.

The statement by the principal auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 58 to 59.

The remuneration charged by the Group’s principal auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for non-audit and
statutory audit services is set out below:

(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
Non-audit services 1 1
Statutory audit 4 3
Total 5 4

The Company firmly believes that clear and effective communication of
the Group’s business strategies and developments helps to enhance
shareholder value. As such, the Group’s senior management maintains
a constant and open dialogue with the investment community through
company visits, information sessions and participation in major investor
conferences. In all, senior management held over 120 meetings with
institutional investors and research analysts in 2008.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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The Company has a wide and diverse shareholder base of institutional
and retail investors. To ensure all shareholders have equal and timely
access to important company information, the Company makes
extensive use of its corporate website to deliver up-to-date information
such as results announcements and press releases. In the interest
of striking a balance between keeping shareholders abreast of the
Company’s performance on one hand and avoiding an unhealthy focus
on short term results on the other, the Company decided against
following the CG Code Recommended Best Practice of publishing
quarterly financial results. Instead, the Company publishes operations
updates for the first three and nine month periods on its corporate
website. Annual and interim reports, together with other stock
exchange filings, are also accessible on the corporate website.

The Board welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns they may have with the Board or
Management directly. The Company’s Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) is an especially important forum. In order to encourage and
facilitate shareholder attendance at its AGM, the Company gives at
least 20 clear business days’ prior notice together with a detailed
agenda. To ensure clear communication, each substantially separate
issue is proposed under a separate resolution. Details of the right
of shareholders to demand a poll and procedures of poll voting at
general meeting are stipulated in the Bye-Laws and included in each
circular related to the convening of a general meeting. The chairman
of the meeting will also explain the poll voting procedures at the
commencement of the general meeting.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, any shareholder holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meeting shall have the right, by written requisition,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Investors and shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at

shareholder’s meetings or to make enquiries of the Board may do so by

contacting our Investor Relations Department whose contact details are

listed on page 160 of this annual report.

The Company held its 2008 AGM on May 14, 2008 and a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”) on August 13, 2008. Both meetings were
held at Block B, 3rd Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung
Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Attendance of individual Board

members at the general meetings is set out below:

Shareholders’ Meetings
in 2008

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton
(retired on May 14, 2008)

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JpP

Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp

Non-executive Director
Professor LEUNG Kwok
(appointed on July 1, 2008)

Executive Directors

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(Chairman and Chief Executive)

Mr. FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles
(resigned on July 15, 2008)

Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard

BREBFASE
R B/
BITRH™

AGM
attended/held

0/1
0/1
0/1
1/1

0/0

1/1

0/1
1/1

BRRFER RS
i EREY
BITRH

SGM
attended/held

0/0
0/1
1/1
1/1

0/1

1/1

0/0
1/1
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The Chairman opened formal business at the 2008 AGM by advising on
the voting procedures and the level of proxies received. The following
items of business were considered at the meeting:

e  Adoption of the audited financial statements and the reports from
the directors and the independent auditor;

° Resolutions on final and special final dividends;

° Retirement and re-election of retiring directors and re-appointment
of auditor;

e Renewal of general mandates to issue shares and to repurchase
shares; and

e  Extension of general mandate to issue shares.

The 2009 AGM is proposed to be held on June 3, 2009. Each of the
resolutions as set out in the notice of the AGM will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

There was no change in the Company’s Bye-Laws during the year.
If any amendment to the Bye-Laws is necessary, according to the
relevant law governing the Company, the Company will propose the
amendment for shareholders’ approval at a general meeting of the
Company.

The Company has long been committed to being a responsible
corporate citizen, with a view to creating a positive impact in the
communities where we do business. Indeed, well before the Company
formally adopted its Corporate Social Responsibility policy statement
in January 2005, it has followed the principle of “doing well by doing
good” in the areas of the stakeholder relations, community involvement
and the environment protection.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Giordano believes that its continued success depends on the
contribution of each and every individual in the organization. As such,
the Company is committed to treating our employees with fairness and
respect. We believe in co-operation, teamwork, and trust. We hire on
the basis of ability and merit, and reward and promote on the basis of
performance.

Giordano also recognizes the critical importance of continued
professional and personal development. As such, the Group invests
heavily in a comprehensive staff training and development program that
focuses not only on basic sales and service training, but also includes
topics such as management training, leadership seminars and other
programs designed to address our people’s personal and professional
development needs.

The Group also works to foster a better work-life balance. For example,
our Hong Kong operations adopted a 5-day work week in 2006.
Various interest groups are also active in organizing different sports
events or leisure activities which employees can participate at minimal
or no cost.

Finally, we conduct employee satisfaction surveys annually and such

surveys allow us to obtain useful feedback for reference in setting
company policies.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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Supply chain management is critical for Giordano’s success and we
work closely with suppliers to ensure that they comply with our quality,
performance and not least labor standards. As such, we expect our
suppliers and vendors to comply with our Core Ethical Sourcing
Requirements as listed below:

e The supplier only employs workers that are above the local legal
minimum age.

e  The supplier does not use forced or prison labour in any part or
aspects of its facilities.

e  The workers are not subjected to physical abuse, or the threat of
physical abuse.

e The supplier does not contravene local environmental laws and
regulations.

e  The supplier provides a safe and healthy work environment for its
workers.

The supplier is committed to rectifying any areas of concern identified
during supplier audits by the Company or its appointed third party
auditors.

The Group’s Quality Assurance team would conduct surprise
inspections from time to time to ensure that factories comply with the
Group’s various standards.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The Group also actively supports various charitable organizations and
causes. Acting on our belief in a “World Without Strangers”, Giordano,
together with its staff in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau as
well as Giordano subsidiaries and affiliates worldwide, made both cash
and clothing donations for emergency relief for victims of the May 12
earthquake in Sichuan, China. The Group also donated supplies to
aid to the victims of severe tropical cyclone Nargis which hit southern

Myanmar on May 2.

However, we do not confine ourselves to assisting only in emergencies,
but also provide stable and long term support to various charitable
organizations, especially those associated with education, children and
the underprivileged. One such program is the Giordano Hope Primary
School project operating under the umbrella of Project Hope, a public
service project organized by the China Youth Development Foundation
(CYDF).
poverty-stricken rural areas of Mainland China with access to primary

Launched in 2000, the program aims to provide children in

school education, and in May 2008, the 19th Giordano Hope Primary
Schools was opened in Xi Lin county of Guangxi Province.

The Company is also committed to minimizing the environmental
impact of its operations. At the end of 2007, the Company began
studying the feasibility of converting its shops to use only energy
saving lighting. In light of the promising results from our five-month trial
in Hong Kong, the Group announced that it will convert all its stores
By the end of
2008, a total of 38 stores worldwide (including 21 in Hong Kong) have

worldwide to using energy saving lights by July 2011.

been converted to using energy saving lighting. The annual energy
savings from the 21 stores in Hong Kong alone have been estimated at
458,559 kW, resulting in the reduction of approximately 318 tons in CO2
emission a year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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Other conservation programs that the Group has introduced including
the adoption of eco-friendly shopping bags and packaging, office paper
recycling, and teleconferencing and video-conferencing to reduce non-
essential business travel, among others. Energy conservation and
environmental protection are long term commitments for the Group and
we will continue to look for new ways to reduce wastage and conserve
energy and other natural resources.

In recognition of Giordano’s achievements in corporate governance
excellence, the Company was presented with the 2008 Hong Kong
Corporate Governance Excellence Award in the category “Other Main
Board and GEM Board Companies” by the Chamber of Hong Kong
Listed Companies and the Centre for Corporate Governance and
Financial Policy of the Hong Kong Baptist University. The Company
was also awarded Caring Company 08/09 by The Hong Kong Council
of Social Service in recognition of its efforts to promote corporate
social responsibility. Although 2009 will be a challenging year for us,
Giordano remains committed to enhancing its performance in corporate
governance and corporate social responsibility.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2008.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
business of the Group is the retail and distribution of men’s, women’s
and children’s basic and fashion apparel and accessories under the
Giordano, Giordano Concepts, Giordano Ladies, Giordano Junior
and BSX brands. Although targeted at different market segments,
the brands all strive to deliver excellent quality, value and service
to consumers. The Group also engages in garment trading and
manufacturing, supporting the Group’s retail business and supplying
products to third parties.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by principal activity and
geography for the year ended December 31, 2008 is set out in note 5
to the financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2008 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 60 to 143.

An interim dividend of 4.5 HK cents per share and a special interim
dividend of 2.0 HK cents per share were paid on September 23, 2008.

The directors recommend to shareholders the payment of a
final dividend of 3.0 HK cents per share for the year ended
December 31, 2008 to those shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on June 3, 2009.

Movements in reserves during the year are set out in the Statements of
Changes in Equity on pages 66 to 68.

As at December 31, 2008, the retained profits of the Company together
with the contributed surplus available for distribution amounted to
HK$665 million (2007: HK$838 million).

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #



RERERN AEBXREOEE - ETILEST
(ZZZ2LF BE BT B8 TIZEE

ﬁ? RERETEEEZ BRI B MK T
41521 °

ARAR-_ZEENE+ _A=1+—RHZTEWE
REZHBEHR P B HMRMIFES6 ©

RZFEENF+_A=+—H AEEEANTH
R—FREEZRTERNR/BEE LT N\BET
(ZZEZLF BEALTRBET) -

AEEERAARERAMEPENBE RIHEARE
BERBEDZ=""

AEEBETEAVRFEZRE EENABERE
FRNE_AR=R-
ARRZBARAFERZEBFIBHN Y B R

=Kt EE24 o

RABBERESEIZHE AR A BBRERAFE
NEBFBEENE-—ANTONEE—BAO+AE-

ARAB AR EBRNELBERZIRE
HEBREED R 2 FEAN -

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #

Donations made for charitable purposes by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$1.1 million (2007: HK$2.1 million).

During the year, the Group acquired fixed assets of approximately
HK$109 million (2007: HK$142 million).
during the year are set out in notes 14, 15 and 21 to the financial

Movements in fixed assets

statements.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
December 31, 2008 are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

As at December 31, 2008, the Group’s bank loans of approximately
HK$78 million (2007: HK$96 million) were repayable on demand or
within one year.

The aggregate percentages of purchases and sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers and customers respectively are less than
30.0 percent.

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
ten fiscal years is set out on pages 2 and 3.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are shown in note 24 to the financial statements.

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the year are set out
on pages 144 to 149.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there are no restrictions against having such rights
under the laws of Bermuda.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT*

Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JP*

Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, JP*

Professor LEUNG Kwok* (appointed on July 1, 2008)

Mr. AU Man Chu, Milton* (retired on May 14, 2008)

Mr. FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles (resigned on July 15, 2008)

Independent non-executive directors
# Non-executive director

In accordance with Bye-Law 98 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard and Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company as at the date of
this report are set out on pages 22 to 26 of this annual report. Further
information of the retiring directors proposed to be re-elected are set
out on pages 158 to 159 of this annual report.

The directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting do not have any service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

None of the directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisted during or at the end
of the year to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party.
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As at December 31, 2008, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQO%),
section 352 of the SFO; or as notified to the Company and The Stock

as recorded in the register required to be kept under

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

ktHmz
HERG
EnEms
(Ktat)
BRHOBERER Beneficial HARE 2%
(H17) interest BOEHN
Beneficial in unlisted Approximate
interest in underlying aggregate
E=pE ERME shares shares percentage of
Name of director Nature of interest (Note) (Note) interests
2B 5 & A
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter Personal 24,118,000 1,800,000 1.74%
BHz {EPN
MAH Chuck On, Bernard Personal 1,619,086 6,200,000 0.52%

et BEZRORRAGTETRZEBRG Emtg BIFE -

HLETZRALTETAZIHBRG 3 EAR GRS
ZHERBEHEMETEEFZBRE FHEH IR
F—BOtEtE-

BREd BN R_FTFENFT_A=1t—8"
RAREERTHREAHBEERARBREEH
EE(EERBH LB GEROIEXVER) BB
HERODREBIFTHABARBIERBRE
ZHEUE=ZBR T _GRATHRENECMAH L
iR [R2E5T R BAEG AR R MR 2 (T
BIORR o WIN Br BB ERSN AR B HEALM
MBARARBE_ZTTNF+ _A=1+—"HBILE
FABELEFZH SARAREETHREZE
BIEARMTN\RZ FRAEBARNRBHEAME
B2 BB s
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Note:  Interests in the shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives were long

position. Underlying unlisted shares are share options granted to the directors
pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company and details of which are set
out on page 147.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2008, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or as notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
Furthermore, save as disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended December 31, 2008 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Name

Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its associates

Franklin Templeton Investments Corp.
Sanderson Asset Management Limited

Hyat -

1. Aberdeen Asset Management Plc J& B EFZ2A
KRENES (B = E—F AN =4
E+URB G

1 Aberdeen Asset Management Plc}é B % [&]
PEWBLAREXREMEENERFFE T2

BEBRAERE

Name of subsidiary

Aberdeen Asset Management Asia Limited
Aberdeen Asset Management Inc

Aberdeen Asset Management Limited
Aberdeen Asset Managers Limited

Aberdeen Fund Management Limited
Aberdeen International Fund Managers Limited
Aberdeen Unit Trust Managers Limited
Edinburgh Fund Management Limited

2. HWFranklin Resources, Inc. Z [ #
2 &N B X A Franklin Templeton
Investments Corp. UK E/WIE G (H#FH
—EE—BN+=E=-FHEE+RRGH
PIER IS #am -

3. Sanderson Asset Management Limited LX#
BRESHFENTFNER T =FKRRG -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBRAERALZF

As at December 31, 2008, the following persons, other than directors
and chief executive of the Company, having interests or short positions
of five percent or more in the Company’s shares or underlying shares
were recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

HERMGR

HERGEH
Aggregate mRER
long position BDEBELN
in shares Approximate
and underlying aggregate
e shares of percentage
Note interests of interests
1 219,420,018 14.71%
2 101,933,440 6.83%
3 88,530,000 5.94%

Notes:

1. Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its associates held
219,420,018 shares in the capacity of Investment Manager.

Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its various wholly owned
subsidiaries held the following shares on behalf of the accounts
they managed:

HFERG A

Aggregate long position in shares

219,420,018
1,764,000
1,460,000

48,779,816
27,724,808
113,398,000
39,107,816
14,000,000

2. Franklin Resources, Inc. had a deemed interest in respect of

101,933,440 shares held by its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
Franklin Templeton Investments Corp., in the capacity of
Investment Manager.

3. Sanderson Asset Management Limited held 88,530,000 shares in
the capacity of Investment Manager.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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BERZATES EmARAI (T EmRAI) F14A.35(1)
GEFEBER 5 2 E 9 Bl BPlacita Holdings
Limited ([ Placita | ) &T 37 gt 7~ & E [ Placita & &
M B A R R Giordano i E & ([ZEHRE]) 2
ELEHFTAR([BELEEHFIEAR)&ZAE=F
HiR - ZELEENNAREE TZZEREEN
RARBZHEBRERG YR _TZTEFHRAN
HREOIZBRREFIARE (ZTZTFRERHH
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—EEN\F+ A=+ BLUBFEZERAH
SEER SR ABELE T BEOENTE T
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RARAARENFEELEEFATER 158 MR
BESREBZMZ YERZZEZNEFE XA
EH-RUEEHE ASEET —HMEAFHE
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AeRzZEREEEEFTERABMAER RN
—EENEFENA T RABRBER - RE_ZSZTNF
NAZTEtRZEERE ARARZEREH
EHERTK L EPlacita2 BEBHITREAE D 2
—+—FGloss Mind Holdings Limited ([ Gloss
Mind |) R B E AR R AT A Placitatgk T A 5
ZEZTRERERZERER(IZSTRK]) -
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No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Two subsidiaries of the Group each entered into a previous
manufacturing license agreement (the “Previous Manufacturing
License Agreements”) on March 29, 2006 with Placita Holdings
Limited (“Placita”) in respect of the purchases of Giordano branded
merchandise by the Group from Placita and its subsidiaries (the
“Purchases”) with a finite term of three years as required under
Rule 14A.35(1) in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange for continuing connected
transactions. The Purchases governed by the Previous Manufacturing
License Agreements constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company and the maximum aggregate value of all the Purchases
for the three years ending December 31, 2008 were approved at a
special general meeting held on May 9, 2006 (the “2006 SGM”) by the
independent shareholders with annual cap amounts of HK$400 million,
HK$440 million and HK$484 million (“Previous Cap Amount(s)”) for the
financial years ended December 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 respectively.

The standard manufacturing license agreement is subject to revision
from time to time by the Company to properly safeguard the Giordano
Group’s interest and was updated in June 2008. Following such
update, a subsidiary of the Group entered into two new manufacturing
license agreements (the “New Manufacturing License Agreements”) with
Placita on June 27, 2008, the terms of which are essentially identical to
the Previous Manufacturing License Agreements and took effect from
August 25, 2008 upon completion of the disposal of 21.0 percent of
the entire issued share capital of Placita by the Company to Gloss Mind
Holdings Limited (“Gloss Mind”) and the redesignation of the remaining
30.0 percent held by the Company into non-voting preference shares
in Placita pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement dated
June 27, 2008 (“Completion”).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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HE
Period

BXSTHRZBER
—EENF+ZHA=1+—H
From the day after Completion to

December 31, 2008

B-_TZNF-HA—HEZE
RHTKEE BT

From January 1, 2009 to
the first anniversary of Completion

BE-_TT)\F+_A=T - HALUBFEZF
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RRAFZZBMAZERGET T ETHEEREF
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Following Completion,
is owned by Gloss Mind, which in turn is wholly owned by
Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Leung, a director of Placita and Placita is therefore
considered a connected person of the Company under the Listing

the entire voting capital of Placita

Rules for a period of 12 months following Completion. Accordingly,
the Purchases contemplated under the New Manufacturing License
Agreements during the 12-month period following Completion
constitute continuing connected transactions (the “Transactions”) of the
Company.

At a special general meeting held on August 13, 2008 (the
“2008 SGM”"), shareholders of the Company independent of the
Transactions approved the Transactions with the new cap amount of
HK$450 million covering the 12-month period following Completion,
which is allocated between the year of 2008 and 2009 as follows:

HEWLER

New Cap Amounts

(&)
(HK$)

—ERTE

150 million

=&
300 million
2008

The Purchases during the financial year ended December 31,
totalled approximately HK$159 million.

The auditor of the Company has performed certain agreed-upon
procedures on the Transactions and reported to the Board that during
the year (i) the Transactions have received approval from the Board;
(i) the Transactions have been entered into in accordance with the
terms of the relevant agreements or other order contracts governing the
Transactions; and (i) the cap amount of HK$484 million for the financial
year ended December 31, 2008 and the cap amount of HK$150 million
for the period from the day after Completion to December 31, 2008

have not been exceeded.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the Transactions during the year and confirmed that they have
been (i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group; (i) conducted either on normal commercial terms or terms
no less favorable to the Group than terms available to independent
third parties; and (i) entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
The independent non-executive directors have also confirmed that
the Transactions have not exceeded the maximum amounts of
HK$484 million capped for the financial year ended December 31, 2008
and HK$150 million capped for the period from the day after
Completion to December 31, 2008 in accordance with the circular of
the Company dated July 21, 2008 and approved by the independent
shareholders at the 2008 SGM.

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors.

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire and being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment, and a resolution to this effect will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 26, 2009

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Giordano
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 60 to 143, which comprise the consolidated
2008, and the
consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement of

and company balance sheets as at December 31,

changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
December 31, 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 26, 2009

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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=

(In HK$ millions,
except earnings per share)

Continuing operations
Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income
Distribution expense
Administrative expense
Other operating expense

Operating profit
Gain on disposal of

a jointly controlled company

Finance expense

Share of profit of jointly controlled

companies

Share of profit of an associate

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

from continuing operations

Discontinued operations
(Loss)/Profit for the year

from discontinued operations
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Profit for the year

B zF
Note 2008
5 4,710
(2,348)
2,362
5 141
(1,680)
(168)
(325)
5,6 330
19 17
7 (2)
17 25
18 11
381
10 (82)
299
(6)
24
20 18
317

2007

4,429
(2,190)

2,239
106
(1,538)

(152)
(274)

381

23
12

415
(112)

303

304
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)

(In HK$ millions,
except earnings per share)

Profit attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Minority interests
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Dividends

Earnings per share for profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company

From continuing and
discontinued operations
Basic (HK cents)
Diluted (HK cents)

From continuing operations
Basic (HK cents)
Diluted (HK cents)

From discontinued operations
Basic (HK cents)
Diluted (HK cents)

B aF
Note 2008

290
21

11 311

3)

317

12(a) 142

13

20.8
20.8

19.4
19.4

1.4
1.4

2007

294

295

304

321

19.8
19.8

19.7
19.7

0.1
0.1

HE-2T/\F+-A=1+—AILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2008

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B /& R B K

'R 2

7



—EE\F+=A=+—A

December 31, 2008
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(In HK$ millions)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Interest in subsidiaries
Interest in jointly controlled
companies
Interest in an associate
Available-for-sale financial asset
Financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss
Leasehold land and
rental prepayments
Rental deposits
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Leasehold land and

rental prepayments
Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

= B R E B ER QA

b &t
Note

14
15
16

17

18

19

20

21

26

22

21
23
16
30

55
Group
2008

227
81

262
43

25

326
264
26

1,263

297

42
423
532

1,294

2,557

2007

287
84

375
43

311
262
37

1,399

441

21
504
570

1,636

2,935

AT

Company
2008 2007
9 9
817 898
25 -
150 155
1,001 1,062
5 5
3 1
409 499
11 12
428 517
1,429 1,579
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December 31, 2008

=g | AT
b &t Group Company
(BB E T REN) (In HK$ millions) Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
EERERE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
MR AR & Capital and reserves
& AR Share capital 24 75 75 75 75
M Reserves 25 1,735 1,628 1,249 1,232
R I B, Proposed dividends 12 45 224 45 224
YiNZNE] 1423 Equity attributable to
JEAE T 2= shareholders of the Company 1,855 1,927 1,369 1,531
LERRER Minority interests 51 99 - -
BB Total equity 1,906 2,026 1,369 1,531
kFRBEME Non-current liabilities
EERIBRE Deferred tax liabilities 26 77 109 = -
oAb FE AT 3R Other payables 27 22 - - -
99 109 = -
REBEE Current liabilities
JE AT BR 3k & H b A5 3R Trade and other payables 27 451 646 2 2
IRITEX Bank loans 31 78 926 58 46
sl Taxation 23 58 - -
552 800 60 48
EEHEE Total liabilities 651 909 60 48
EakaEHERE Total equity and liabilities 2,557 2,935 1,429 1,579
2| B £ BAR
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter MAH Chuck On, Bernard
E5ZE EBZE
Director Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(In HK$ millions)

Operating activities:
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:
Gain on disposal of a jointly
controlled company
Gain on disposal of
a subsidiary
Share of profit of
jointly controlled companies
Share of profit of an associate
Loss on dilution of
a jointly controlled company
Amortization of leasehold land and
rental prepayments
Interest income
Depreciation
Impairment of property,
plant and equipment
Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss
Interest on bank loans
Share option expense

Operating cash inflow before changes

in working capital, interest and tax
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade and

other payables — current portion
Increase in other payables

— long-term portion

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas tax paid

Net cash inflow from
operating activities

Bz
Note 2008
399
(17)
(24)
17 (25)
18 (11)
21 31
5 (10)
6 130
6 8
6 2
(1)
7 3
8 12
497
67
(60)
(68)
22
458
(3)
(23)
(85)
347
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417

517
(19)

343

2008 #
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(In HK$ millions)

Investing activities:
Purchase of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment
Increase in leasehold land and
rental prepayments
Increase in rental deposits
Decrease in bank time deposits
Interest received
Dividends received from
jointly controlled companies

Dividends received from an associate

Repayment of shareholder loan

from jointly controlled companies

Net cash inflow from the disposal
of a jointly controlled company
Net cash outflow from
the disposal of a subsidiary

Net cash outflow from
investing activities

Financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of shares

Dividends paid to minority shareholders

Dividends paid
Additions of bank loans

Net cash outflow from
financing activities

Decrease in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

S

—EE/\F+-A=+-AILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2008

Bz
Note

14

21

30

20

30

2008

(109)

(58)
()

10

10

42

(2

(104)

(27)
(321)
67

(281)

(38)

567

530

2007

(142)

(153)

(12)
(395)
38

(367)

(177)

720

24

567
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HE_ZTZ )/ \F+-_A=+—HILHFE
For the year ended December 31, 2008

(LEKEETAEN)
(In HK$ millions)

R-2ENE-A-H
At January 1, 2008

BIHBRARRA D ARE ERAR
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries and branches

Realization of exchange reserve
upon disposal of
ajointly controlled company
MHERREEATEZEM
Increase in fair value of
available-for-sale financial asset
BEERBAEFE 28 (Mitos)
Movement in net deferred tax assets
(note 26)

FREERNEETER
Net gain recognized directly in equity
RERRR

Profit for the year

ERUNEER
Total recognized gain

BhRERE

Transfer among reserves

e B

Share option scheme
-BREER
- Share option expense

BRRAR-MBAR

Capital contributions to a subsidiary

HE-NEBAR

Disposal of a subsidiary

SHRERS

Dividends to minority shareholders

EDEERBREAIRS
(F3E12(0)

2007 final and special dividends
(note 12(b))

“RZN\ERERAEARS
(5 12(a)

2008 interim and special dividends
(note 12(a))

RZBENE+ZA=1+-H
At December 31, 2008

[
Share
capital

75

75

081
Contributed
surplus

383

383

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

A X E B ER QS

%

RO A
Capital
redemption
reserve

R EE
Share
premium

608

FRRRRELER
Attributable to shareholders of the Company
BRE (GEZ;
i (note 25)
Share ERfE HftfE
options  Exchange Other
reserve  reserve  reserves
7 57 113
- (73) -
- (5) -
- 5 -
- (73) -
- (73) -
(1) - -
12 - -
- 1 (12)
1 1 (12)
18 (15) 101

608

mHEZE
HEERE
Available-
for-sale
financial
asset
reserve

BRET
Retained
profits

681

311

3

()

12

(224)

(97)
(313)

679

£t

Total

1,027

(73)

()

(70)

311

24

12

)

(224)

(97)
(313)

1,855

SERR

ER
Minority
interests

99

()

()

3

(23)

(7

(45)

51

EREE
Total
equity

2,026

(62)

()

(79)

317

238

(22)

(27)

(224)

(97)
(358)

1,906

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #



HE_ZZN\F+-_A=1+—BHLFE
For the year ended December 31, 2008

SRR EZARATMT
The comparative figures for 2007 are set out as follows:

RRRRR GBS
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

qhEze
REAERE
R fafE (Ft525)  Available-
ERGHE [ (note 25) for-sale DEHEE
RA  BABEH Capital ~ BEE Share  ERFEE  HEtEE  fnancal  EFEF Ern Exnis
(L EEEETAEN) Share  Contributed  redemption Share options  Exchange Other asset  Retained A5 Minority Total
(In HKS millions) capital surplus reserve  premium reserve reserve reserves reserve profits Total interests equity
RZZT+E-A-H
At January 1, 2007 75 383 3 606 10 20 113 - 7 1,987 103 2,090

BHHBRAARARAREZER AR
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries and branches - - - - - 39 - - - 39 1) 38
BRHBEAETEL2T (Mite)
Movement in net deferred tax liabilities
(note 26) - - - - - ) - - - ) - )

RRABRRERTER

Net gain recognized directly in equity - - - - - 37 - - - 37 1 36
REREH

Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 295 295 9 304

ERUNEER
Total recognized gain - - - - - 37 - - 295 332 8 340

RS
Transfer among reserves - - - - 4 - . . 4 _ _ _
el al
Share option scheme
BT R REM %72 KR

- Shares issue upon exercise of

share options - - - 2 - - - - - 9 - )
-BREER
- Share option expense - - - - 1 - - - - 1 _ 1
PERRRE
Dividends to minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - - (12) (12)
ZERRERERERIRE
(FIFE12())
2006 final and special dividends
(note 12(b)) - - - - - - - - (298) (298) - (298)
“ETEEREBREARS
(FiH3E12(a)
2007 interim and special dividends
(note 12(a)) - - - - - - - - (97) (97) - (97)
- - - 2 (3) - - - (391) (392) (12) (404

RZZZ+E+-A=1+-A
At December 31, 2007 75 383 3 608 7 57 113 - 681 1,927 99 2,026

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & # = m BB R 2o &



HE_ZTZ )/ \F+-_A=+—HILHFE
For the year ended December 31, 2008

(WENEETREL)
RZEZN\E—-H—H
RERREMN (M3E11)
R st e

AR A
B8
-BREER

“RRLERYREARE

(M EE12(0))

“REN\FRELERRE

(FH5E12(2))

(In HK$ millions)

At January 1, 2008

Profit for the year (note 11)
Total recognized gain

Transfer among reserves
Share option scheme
- Share option expense
2007 final and special
dividends (note 12(b))
2008 interim and special
dividends (note 12(a))

R-ZZEENFE+=-H=1+—H AtDecember 31,2008

“ERLEIHRBTFMT

The comparative figures for 2007 are set out as follows:

(UEBEETHEN)

R-_ZFZtF-A—H
AEREH (FE11)
BRN SR

A

BhEs 8

—RITERREMETZ
fxfn

-BREER

“EERERBRERIRE

(M 5E12(0))
“ET L FRERERIR
(M 5E12(2)

R-ZZE

(In HK$ millions)

At January 1, 2007

Profit for the year (note 11)
Total recognized gain

Transfer among reserves
Share option scheme

- Shares issue upon exercise

of share options
- Share option expense
2006 final and special
dividends (note 12(b))
2007 interim and special
dividends (note 12(a))

+H+=-H=+—H8 AtDecember 31, 2007

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

A R E B ER

=

RA&
Share
capital

75

75

B
Share
capital

75

75

Bx

RO @M%

PN Capital
Contributed redemption

surplus reserve
540 3

540 3

AR

BEEE

HARE Capital
Contributed  redemption
surplus reserve

540 3

540 3

BB EE
Share
premium

608

608

o 1/'\ i {E
Share
premium

606

608

BRERE
Share
options
reserve

7

(1)

12

1

18

BRERE
Share
options
reserve

10

RERR
Retained
profits

298
147
147

1

(224)

(©7)
(320)

125

BEER
Retained
profits

628
61
61

4

BRAE
Total
equity

1,531
147

147

12

(224)

(©7)
(309)

1,369

EaniE
Total
equity

1,862
61

61

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #



Giordano International Limited ([A 2 &)
REWBAR (SBIAER])FER—EH#
ERB-—TN\ERAEHLET - TZEEX
2 EE @B 5 i & EGiordano ~ Giordano
Concepts * Giordano Ladies * Giordano Junior
X Bluestar Exchange/BSXZ & i 7 (iR - 7
EENRPEAEERELERNER-

ARRAAR—BRBEREIMAINEREE
AT B EE A A Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda °
RAABNEFNEBME X HPAER AR
F—mi5 i (R :709) -

BREFRIGERRSN AR e MR ABERET
REN - BGEAVBERRER_FZEAF
ZAZTRBEEREZSEB-

AUBRETHRA TS EHRERIH
e

AMBHRRDIZBEL QM AGRD
ZEBMBREEN ([HKFRS |) ~ &E
SRR (THKAS ) K2 B B - A
BHRERRBELKALRE BRI HE
ZERMEERREBERIREATFEREZ
EMEESEHEAFEMER-

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #

—EENF+_HA=+—H
December 31, 2008

Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) distribute and sell casual apparel under
the brand names of Giordano, Giordano Concepts, Giordano
Ladies, Giordano Junior and Bluestar Exchange/BSX through an
extensive retailing network with over 1,800 shops spanning over
20 countries. It also operates a limited manufacturing capacity in
Mainland China.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. Its registered office is situated at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda. The Company has
its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(stock code: 709).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in million of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million) unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on March 26, 2009.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The financial statements are
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial asset and
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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December 31, 2008

e BB HKFRS K HKASHR ELB i R R s 75
ZER—LERSEF -BEENEE
TREARNEE 2 R BUERRED HIE - —
HEZSEHESOS RIRFEE R
AU BBRERBEATE ZBREZMMEFTRN
B sEAREE o

BT ERAN T M E20b0)F R
—EEN\F—A—BRERRZEF
SR 2 #iE RAE1E ET 2 HKAS &R HKFRS
SN BB BREMEAZGHBER R
HEFFHRH —_TTLFE2MBR
TR AMRR -

RAFE AEEERMBEFT B
SEMIATNERZ B RECBM A%
AfFH BB IR _TENF—-HF—H
2 & FIA 2 RS BB R R A B R
AEELEEFRLBEBREATE -

HKAS 39 TRMIA BANGE
(1&3T)

HKFRS 7 SRMTA WE
(1&3T)

HK(IFRIC) HKFRS 2— % @ & B 7%
— 2B NR5

HK(IFRIC) BR7G BT RE L Bt
—@E12

HK(IFRIC) HKAS19— R EEFIE E
-4 R REESERK
W& HEBIE

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m BB R 2 7

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs and HKASs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.

The accounting policies and methods of computation used in
the preparation of these financial statements are consistent
with those used in 2007 except for the adoption of new
and revised HKASs and HKFRSs which are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2008 as
set out in note 2(b) below.

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following
amendments and interpretations to published standards
issued by HKICPA, which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning on or after January 1, 2008 but
are not relevant or have no material effect to the Group’s

operations:

HKAS 39 Financial instruments:
(Amendments) Recognition and measurement

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments:
(Amendments) Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury
—INT 11 share transactions

HK(IFRIC) Service concession arrangements
—INT 12

HK(IFRIC) HKAS 19 — The limit on a
—INT 14 defined benefit asset, minimum

funding requirements and their
interaction

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #



EAEEXBHEMLARAEE
“ETNF-A-HRZEFARZ SR
FREEBZETHEERMREEN
EFT R B AR R  EARE W RN E
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B TS HR R IR T ER AN DA T 3 48 2 R AN 3R
BEAZEFTT RRE:

HKAS 1 [BF 5= A 2 3R )
(1&&T) (AT hHF

—HA—BEmx &R
ZEREER) -

HKFRS 8 [ 238 7 56
==

—A—HEH KM%
ZEEER) o

HK(IFRIC) [RERFE

— 31’213 (A=ZENF
+tA—BRIZEFAS

ZEBER) -

BRA £ 2 #rig QI FIIR B R 2B 5T
N BRI LHETESREINE
Sh - WEHANEEZ PRI ENERT
B M EHIERERTRAERRE K&
BEeRMZEER-
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December 31, 2008

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards have been published that are relevant to
the Group’s business and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009 or
later periods. The Group has not early adopted the following
new standards, amendments and interpretations in the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008:

HKAS 1 Presentation of financial
(Revised) statements (effective for
annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2009).

HKFRS 8 Operating segments (effective
for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2009).

HK(IFRIC) Customer loyalty programmes
- INT 13 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after
July 1, 2008).

Apart from certain presentational changes and additional
disclosures, the adoption of the above new standards,
amendments and interpretations will have no significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements. The Group will
adopt these new and revised HKFRSs when they become
effective.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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REMBHRRBEARARENE A
BE_TTN\F+_A=t—HLLzZY
B -

SEAMABRAEZEAR G RiEHT
RERA MR-
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BERERA-

HEMBARZ W EE  fBHEMS
ZWAHEEEBEREZARICEEFE (&
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ZIEMEE) 2 E -

DB REREINABRREHNBLRZ
REXBENEBEFETE 2 -

LRp=NCIP = h$ﬁ7§§iﬁ§%ﬁ%
RAZRAPZETRERIDEHTR
ALY BEAEAREESTS 2 EH L AE
EREMEREERE

MBAR KRB AEGEEE T AEE
ERETEHEANAKERE R MRIE
HIREAL LEE B SRR o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m BB R 2 7

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to December 31, 2008.

All material inter-company transactions and balances within
the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are dealt with in the consolidated profit and loss account
from or up to the effective dates of acquisition or disposal.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the
difference between the proceeds of the sale and the Group’s
share of its net assets together with any goodwill which was
not previously charged or recognized in the consolidated
profit and loss account.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the operating results and net assets of
subsidiaries.

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, controls more than 50 percent of its voting power or
issued share capital or controls the composition of its board
of directors or has power to govern its financial and operating
policies.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which

control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognized directly in the consolidated profit and loss
account.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries are changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost, less provision for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m BB R 2 7

A jointly controlled company is an entity in which each
venturer has an interest and of which its financial and
operating policies are under contractual arrangements jointly
controlled by the venturers.

The Group adopts the equity method to account for the
interests in jointly controlled companies. The consolidated
profit and loss account includes the Group’s share of the
results of jointly controlled companies for the year, and the
Group’s balance sheet includes the Group’s share of net
assets of the jointly controlled companies. When the Group
transacts with its jointly controlled companies, unrealized
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in jointly controlled companies.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the interests in jointly
controlled companies are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of jointly controlled companies
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

An associate is a company over which the Group has
significant influence but does not control, generally
accompanying an equity interest of between 20 percent
and 50 percent. Investments in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method of accounting and is initially
recognized at cost.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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The Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognized in the profit and loss account, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognized
in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other economic
environments.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s companies are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the company
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the transaction dates. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the profit and loss account.

The results and financial position of all the group
companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance sheet

presented are translated at the closing rate at
balance sheet date;

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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— income and expenses for each profit and loss
account are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average rate is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case, income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rate on transaction dates); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognized in
the exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign companies,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to
exchange reserve. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, such exchange differences are
recognized in the profit and loss account as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Freehold land is stated at cost and is not amortized.

Buildings, leasehold improvements and other fixed assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents the
purchase price of the asset and other costs incurred to bring
the asset into its existing use.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the profit and loss account during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated.

—  Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years
after the date of completion.

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease or their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after
the date of completion.

- Plant 5 years

—  Other property and equipment 3 -5 years

Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognized in the
profit and loss account.

An investment property is a property which is held for long
term rental yield or for capital appreciation, or both.

Investment property comprises buildings held under finance
leases. It is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents
the purchase price of the investment property and other
costs incurred to bring the property into its existing use.
Depreciation of investment property is calculated to write off
its cost over the unexpired period of the lease.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in the profit and loss
account during the financial period in which they are incurred.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortization and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units).

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivable and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determine the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or
so designated at inception. Derivatives are also classified
in this category unless they are designated as hedges.
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Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
'trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash
equivalents’ in the balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose
of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet
date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category
are presented in the consolidated profit and loss account as
other income. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated profit and loss
account.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account as part
of other income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in consolidated profit and loss account - is
removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated profit and loss
account.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and
is arrived at as follows:

() Raw materials and purchased goods — invoiced prices
plus procurement costs;

(i)  Work in progress and finished goods — cost of direct
materials, direct labor and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads, excluding borrowing costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated price at which inventories
can be sold in the normal course of business after allowing
for the costs of realization and, where appropriate, the cost of
conversion from their existing state to a finished condition.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
The amount of the provision is recognized in the profit and
loss account.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within bank
loans in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortized cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the profit and loss account
in the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalized as being directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale.

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using liability method,
on temporary differences between the tax base of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Taxation rates enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date are used to determine deferred
taxation.

Deferred tax assets generated from taxable losses are not
recognized unless it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.
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Deferred taxation is provided on the temporary differences
arising on investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled
companies and associates, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled by
the parent company and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Except for the pension scheme arrangements in Taiwan,
the Group operates defined contributions schemes and,
if applicable, participates in central defined contribution
provident fund schemes for all qualified employees. The
assets of the said schemes are held by independently
administered funds separated from those of the Group.
Contributions to these schemes are made by both the
employers and employees at rates up to 20 percent on
the employees’ salaries.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans and mandatory provident fund scheme are
expensed as incurred and, if applicable, are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme or the plan prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been made.

The branches of wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group in Taiwan have a defined benefit scheme (“Old
Scheme”) governed by the Labor Standard Law and a
defined contribution scheme (“New Scheme”) governed
by the Labor Pension Act which became effective on
July 1, 2005.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Under the Old Scheme, the Group has an obligation
to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the scheme
to pay the benefits earned for the service years of all
employees before the New Scheme was effective and the
subsequent service years of employees who chose to
continue to participate in the Old Scheme. The branches
currently contribute at two percent of the total salaries
of participating employees as determined and approved
by the relevant government authorities. The assets of the
Old Scheme are invested by the Central Trust of China.

Under the New Scheme, the branches contribute each
month at six percent of the salary of employees who
choose to participate in the New Scheme into individual
pension accounts at the Bureau of Labor Insurance.
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The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognized as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. At each balance sheet
date, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable.
It recognizes the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the profit and loss account, and a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining
vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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recognized as follows:

Sales of goods are recognized when products are
delivered to the customer, the customer has accepted
the products and collectibility of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Sales of goods are recognized when products are sold
to the customer. Retail sales are usually in cash or by
credit card. The recorded revenue is the gross amount of
sales, before netting off credit card fees payable for the
transactions. Such fees are included in distribution costs.

Sales of services are recognized in the accounting period
in which the services are rendered.

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method, taking into account
the principal amount outstanding and the interest rates
applicable.

Royalty income is recognized on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive
payment is established.
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Certain derivatives, including forward foreign exchange
contracts, which do not qualify for hedge accounting, are
initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. Changes in fair value of the
derivatives are recognized immediately in the profit and loss
account.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the leasing company
are accounted for as operating leases. Rental payments
applicable to such operating leases are charged to the profit
and loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease
periods.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognized because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

With the exception of a contingent liability acquired as part
of a business combination which is initially recognized at
fair value (provided that the fair value can be reasonably
measured) in accordance with note 2(d), a contingent
liability is not recognized but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be

recognized as a provision.
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The Group’s activities exposed it mainly to currency risk and
credit risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to manage certain risk exposure when necessary.

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

As at the year end, the foreign exchange risk of the
Group arising from commercial transactions, recognized
assets and liabilities is considered to be insignificant.
This is due to the Group's transactions being generally
denominated in the functional currencies of the
respective group entities, while balances denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entity are generally settled promptly
leaving minimal outstanding foreign currency position as
at the balance sheet date

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets and
liabilities, companies in the Group may use forward
foreign exchange contracts when major fluctuation in the
relevant foreign currency is anticipated.

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations,
whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. Currency exposure arising from the net
assets of the Group’s foreign operation such as Japan
is managed partially through borrowings denominated in
their relevant foreign currencies.
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The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
rental deposits and amounts due from related parties.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets. As at December 31, 2008, all the
bank deposits are deposited in the high quality financial
institutions without significant credit risk.

The Group will limit the amount of credit exposure to
place deposits in reputable financial institutions with
credit rating of B+ or above only.

The table below shows the deposit balances with banks
of various rating as at December 31, 2008 and 2007.
Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these banks.

£E
Group

(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
Counterpart
Banks with A+ rating 29 227
Banks with A or A- rating 454 259
Banks with B+ rating 1 33

484 519

The source of current credit rating is from Standard &
Poor.
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TEENER

Retail sales are usually made in cash, via popular credit

cards or through reputable and dispersed department

stores. The Group’s credit sales are only made to

wholesale customers with an appropriate credit history

and on credit terms within 60 days.

The table below shows the major types of debtors as at

December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Group

(In HK$ millions) 2008
Counterpart
Landlords 280
Department stores 166
Multinational companies -
Related parties (note 35) 32
Credit card receivables 8
486

2007

277
168
63
29
12

539

These counterparts have no default history in the past.

The Group holds a bank guarantee of HK$70 million

(2007: HK$73 million) from a landlord.
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REBEFEBEFTTRIETRE AR The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by maintaining
RELEEHERELARERERE sufficient banking facilities and cash and cash
MRS RIRSEEY  KIEHREE equivalents, which is generated from the operating cash
&Rk flow and financing cash flow.

TERXBEREERZA QY HHE% The table below analyzes the Group’s financial liabilities
THEE»AREBR T EAEBEE into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
PR B4R 2 D Hf o EEEPﬁﬁ?iﬂﬁfﬁ%E period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
BEHRTERESRE - maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

-ER -E=F

Within  Between 1 @
(LEREETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 1year and 3 years Total
JERERR Trade payables 231 - 231
- e g Accruals and other payables 220 22 242
RITER Bank loans 78 - 78
RZEENE+ZA=1+-A As at December 31, 2008 529 22 551
JERERR Trade payables 300 - 300
R ERAREMERT Accruals and other payables 343 3 346
RITER Bank loans 97 - 97
RZEE+F+ZA=+—H As at December 31, 2007 740 3 743

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Except for the short-term bank borrowings of HK$78
million (2007: HK$96 million) held at effective interest
rates of 2.4 percent (2007: 2.6 percent); the Group
has no significant interest-bearing liabilities. The short-
term bank borrowings at floating rate expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk which is insignificant to
the Group. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. Management does not anticipate
significant impact resulted from the changes in interest
rates.

The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern as well as
maximizing returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

The Group has a low gearing ratio of 4.2 percent (2007:
5.0 percent). In order to improve the capital structure, the
Group may raise long term debts, adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
and issue new shares.

The table below analyzes the Group’s capital structure.

%
Group

(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007

Total equity 1,906 2,026

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid base to support
the operations and development of its business in the long
term. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the years ended December 31, 2008 and
2007.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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The Group conducts impairment reviews of non-current
assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Management
assesses the recoverable amount of each non-current asset
based on its value in use or on its net selling price (by
reference to market prices), depending upon the anticipated
future plans for the assets. These calculations require the use
of judgments and estimates.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation
to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there
are material changes from previous estimates.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in economic conditions in places
where the Group operates and changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.

The fair value of financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss that are not traded in an active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using historical arm’s length market transaction; reference to
current market value of another instrument; discounting cash
flow analysis and option pricing models.

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
available-for-sale financial asset, the Group determines the
fair values by using valuation technique which based on
information from a variety of sources, including the latest
financial information of the available-for-sale financial asset.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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NREBFEEBAEZE NS EHEGiordano The principal business of the Group is retail and distribution
Giordano Concepts * Giordano Ladies * of casual apparel and accessories under Giordano, Giordano
Giordano Junior2 BSXZ fhhe 7 E ik & 48 B Concepts, Giordano Ladlies, Giordano Junior and BSX brands.
MeMRFERN RNEBHEEH T DREERK (K During the year, the Group has disposed of its principal
AW EREHERERKE S R BIES manufacturing operation (note 20) and continues to carry on
7 o limited garment trading and manufacturing operation.
AEEERRZEEBLEMBALNT Turnover and other income recognized during the year are as
follows:
58
Group
(UEBEZTREN) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
BEREER Continuing operations
EER Turnover
TERDHEEKZ Sales revenue from retail and
HEWA distribution operation 4,709 4,420
KRB S RBEEB 2 Sales revenue from garment trading
HEWA and manufacturing operation 1 9
4,710 4,429
H g A Other income
FMEWKA Interest income 10 13
LR ON Commission income 14 6
He WA Rental income 39 31
ISHETON Royalty income 14 17
BE 5 W 0% Net exchange gain 10 24
BIRERW (M) Reinvestment tax refund (note) 33 -
RERREATFEARSREE Gain on financial asset at fair
Z Wz value through profit or loss 1 -
Hag A Other income 20 15
141 106

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
'3 I BB R 2 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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Note:

During the year, approximately HK$168 million of the Group’s
reinvestment in certain subsidiaries had been approved by the
PRC government as qualified for a reinvestment tax refund and
accordingly, 40.0 percent of the enterprise income tax previously
levied on the subsidiaries in relation to such reinvestment totalling
approximately HK$33 million has been refunded by the PRC

government.
5
Group
(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
Discontinued operations
Turnover
Sales revenue from garment trading
and manufacturing operation 338 521
Other income
Net exchange (loss)/gain (2) 2
Other income 5 0
3 2

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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MM FE14FFE EARE BEME HERREZRE -
HEEEERE LT EBHENET X HEERIER
(WEEEETREN) (In HK$ millions)
EXR Turnover

HMEE External sales

DHEHE Inter-segment sales
FREE Segment results

e (58) Operating profit/(loss)

HEER Finance expense

HE-HREEHAR &R
HE-WBRRERN
JEfE ARIEHI A AR

JEfE — B A AR

BRAET
i

BBRET
PERRER

RR MR

E

HREEHARER
—BER AR
AR EE

BEER

a8
NEHaE
RANEZBE

RERE

BREX (Hi14)

& (Hie)

NE HERRERE
(Hiite)

BETHRAFARS
(Hiite)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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wEFE

E-NEAREL

MR 5 75 0 R PR A FE R IR S R &

EYTERABUREARKRADEZEXEE

Gain on disposal of a jointly controlled company
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Share of profit of jointly controlled companies
Share of profit of an associate

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation
Minority interests

Profit attributable to shareholders

Assets
Segment assets
Interest in jointly controlled companies
Interest in an associate
Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

Other information
Capital expenditure (note 74)
Depreciation (note 6)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(note 6)
Amortization of leasehold land prepayments
(note 6)

E=FEEPML-

I E A
Continuing
operations
BRESR
2ER BEEY
PHER Garment
Retail and trading and
distribution  manufacturing
2008 2008
4,709 1
- 118
4,709 119
324 6
(2 -
- 17
22 3
11 -
(82) -
) -
1,868 175
262 -
43 -
439 28
105 2
116 4
8 -
9 -

FRRBEEY
Discontinued
operations

BRESR
BEEY
Garment

trading and
manufacturing
2008

338
147

485

(5)
(1)

24

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 #

HHE
Eliminations
2008

(26;)

(265)

REe - NHBEELTERAAT DR Z

Group
2008

5,048

325

@)
17
24
25
11

399
(82)

317
®

31

2,043
262
43
209

2,557
467
184

651

109
130

Ea
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Segment assets consist of primarily property, plant and equipment, inventories, receivables and operating cash attributable
to individual business segment. They exclude unallocated corporate assets.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. They exclude items such as taxation and unallocated corporate

borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment as set out in note 14.

Inter-segment sales were conducted in the normal course of business at prices and terms comparable to the other

third party customers of the Group.
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(In HK$ millions)

Turnover
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Segment results
Operating profit/(loss)

Finance expense
Share of profit of jointly controlled companies
Share of profit of an associate

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation
Minority interests

Profit attributable to shareholders

Assets
Segment assets
Interest in jointly controlled companies
Interest in an associate
Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

Other information
Capital expenditure (note 74)
Depreciation (note 6)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(note 6)
Amortization of leasehold land prepayments
(note 6)

BEREER
Continuing
operations
TER REEH
PEER Garment
Retail and trading and
distribution manufacturing
2007 2007
4,420 9
- 100
4,420 109
384 €]
(1 -
13 10
12 -
(112) -
@ -
1,945 177
342 33
43 -
453 29
126 2
103 4
3 -
9 -

FRBELEEH
Discontinued
operations
KKEBHR
Garment

trading and
manufacturing
2007

521
306

827

285

14
1

HHR £
Eliminations Group
2007 2007

(408)

(406) 4,950

. 2,407

2,935

270

909

- 142
- 118

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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EEENIBIEREMAEM O - BEHAZE Turnover is allocated based on the location of customers.
REARBES IREZEEER T DAL - Total assets and capital expenditure are allocated based on
the location of those assets.

TRARNEFEERE EABHILEES The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
FEIL M A D AT o turnover, capital expenditure and total assets by geographical
locations.
BREOEEY FBELEEY
Continuing Discontinued @t
operations operations Total
ERMEX - ¢N: 5 e b3 EEAR
EEE Capital 2] Capital 4] Capital Total
Turnover expenditure Turnover expenditure Turnover expenditure assets
(WEREETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008
RE AR Mainland China 1,690 52 86 2 1,776 54 998
B% Hong Kong 802 17 51 - 853 17 638
=y Taiwan 634 13 22 - 656 13 180
g Singapore 368 8 8 - 376 8 84
hR Middle East 249 - - - 249 - -
SR Australia 218 1 5 - 223 1 39
BRAD Malaysia 168 5 19 - 187 5 52
B Korea 117 - 42 - 159 - -
Ax Japan 27 - 11 - 38 - 15
Hith Others 437 11 % - 531 1 185
4,710 107 338 2 5,048 109 2,191
HAED DR ER Interest in jointly controlled companies 262
—BENRER Interest in an associate 43
AAUDEZEE Unallocated corporate assets 61
EERE Total assets 2,557

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
'3 I BB R 2 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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5. X HMWARDEB 5. TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND SEGMENT
&8 (&) INFORMATION (continued)
(b) XEREFXLX - HE (b) Secondary reporting format — geographical
o EB(48) segments (continued)
RELEER FRBEEER
Continuing Discontinued @it
operations operations Total

BARX BARX BARX BEAR

EEE Capital HEE Capital EEE Capital Total

Turnover  expenditure Turnover  expenditure Turnover  expenditure assets

(WEREETTREN) (In HKS millions) 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007

hEARE Mainland China 1,358 27 107 14 1,465 41 1,087

B Hong Kong 860 20 103 - 963 20 608

= Taiwan 649 27 28 - 677 21 231

I Singapore 390 15 19 - 409 15 122

FE Middle East 203 - - - 203 - -

B Australia 235 13 12 - 247 13 65

SRAD Malaysia 151 9 13 - 164 9 49

BE Korea 145 - 38 - 183 - -

=K Japan 39 1 54 - 93 1 23

Hity Others 399 16 147 - 546 16 294

4,429 128 521 14 4,950 142 2,479

HREH A RAER Interest in jointly controlled companies 375

—BEDRER Interest in an associate 43

AUDEZEE Unallocated corporate assets 38

BEAR

Total assets 2,935

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(WEEBETRENL)

RERMBSNBRTI
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ZEE
MmE BBER
REMENE
ME BER
RiEHE

HENE BERREZ

FEE
THREFZ
KEHEER
—HEEEXH
—FIAETER

RERFE (D) /EER

FEMH
BIRA (Hi£8)

(WEEBETRENL)

BRITEFAL

(In HK$ millions)

The operating profit is stated
after charging:
Amortization of leasehold land
prepayments
Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment property
Impairment of property,
plant and equipment
Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Operating lease rentals in respect
of land and buildings
- minimum lease payments
- contingent rent
(Written back)/provision for obsolete
stock and stock written off
Staff costs (note 8)

(In HK$ millions)

Interest on bank loans

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

A R E B ER

N

=

Continuing
operations
2008 2007
9 9
4 3
117 105
3 2
8 3
2 3
688 609
215 193
(3) 12
725 678
Continuing
operations
2008 2007
2 1

3
Group
FRELEER
Discontinued @gt
operations Total
2008 2007 2008 2007
- - 9 9
1 5 4
10 11 127 116
- - 3 2
- - 8 3
- - 2 3
7 10 695 619
- - 215 193
10 11 7 23
62 76 787 754
3
Group
FRECEER
Discontinued @gt
operations Total
2008 2007 2008 2007
1 1 3 2

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 #
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%58
Group
REREEH FBECEER
Continuing Discontinued oy
operations operations Total
(LB EETBEN) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HekIE Salaries and wages
(BREESEH) (including directors’ emoluments) 645 623 62 76 707 699
EkES A Share option expense 12 1 - - 12 1
Bike Pension cost
—REMHKEE - defined contribution plans 68 54 - - 68 54
725 678 62 76 787 754
REER AEBRGERRGEERZH# During the year, no unvested benefits were utilized by the
HK(ZETEFE) LR EH/KKFE R Group to reduce the level of contributions (2007: Nil). As at
—EEN\FR_EELF+-_RA=F+—H 8 December 31, 2008 and 2007, no unvested benefits were
BA R FFEH 2 REBEUH R available to be utilized in the future years.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & # = m BB R 2o &
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HE-FENFT-A=+-BLFE

AEESHMESFINNT :
e
EEns Name of Directors Fees
HK$'000
2008
2B LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter -
BKE FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles’ -
5h% MAH Chuck On, Bernard -
& SO AU Man Chu, Milton*? 115
N Barry John BUTTIFANT * 350
BEE KWONG Ki Chi * 350
FER LEE Peng Fei, Allen * 350
2 LEUNG Kwok™ 138
1,303
2007
2154 LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter -
BXE FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles -
O MAH Chuck On, Bernard -
Z9¢ AU Man Chu, Milton * 275
IR Barry John BUTTIFANT * 275
BEE KWONG Ki Chi * 275
TR LEE Peng Fei, Allen * 275
1,100

. BULIFNTEF

. FRHITEF

’ H i ez G IR BR (0 f5 B R B REA

! R-BENFLATLARREF

? R-ZBENFRATIARFEE

g R-_FENFLA—HEFEF

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

AR E B ER

N

e A
Salaries Bonuses
HK$'000 HK$'000

2,689 7,963
1,218 -
2,132 1,000
6,039 8,963
2,618 10,344
1,919 -
2,132 1,500
6,669 11,844

AR E
Share
options

HK$'000

514

343

December 31, 2008 is set out below:

EES:315 3
%

Employer’s

Hi2 8 contribution

Other
benefits*

HK$'000
1,452

100
218

1,770

1,386
104
218

1,708

Independent non-executive directors

Non-executive director

to pension
schemes

HK$'000
12

32
12

74

At

Total

HK$'000

12,630
1,350
3,705

115
350
350
350
138

18,988

14,360
2,073
3,862

275
275
275
275

21,395

Other benefits include insurance premium, housing and tax allowances

Resigned as a director on July 15, 2008

Retired as a director on May 14, 2008

Appointed as a director on July 1, 2008

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 #
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The aggregate amount of emoluments payable to directors of
the Company during the year is as follows:

(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007

Fees 1 !
Other emoluments:
Basic salaries, housing allowances,

other allowances and benefits in kind 8 8
Bonuses 9 12
Share options 1 -

Pension contributions = -

19 21

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include two (2007: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2007: two)
individuals during the year are as follows:

(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007

Basic salaries, housing allowances,

other allowances and benefits in kind 7 3
Bonuses 2
9 4

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER 2SS
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BT Re B ERMeARRE The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals fell

ONE within the following bands:
AE

B < 48 Bl Number of individuals
Emolument bands 2008 2007
B

HK$

2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2 1
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 - 1
5,000,001 - 5,500,000 1 _

SZEBRRAZ The charge for taxation in the consolidated profit and loss account
MIBZ A represents:
£
Group
BELEER FHELEER
Continuing Discontinued oy
operations operations Total
(LB EETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
FB%iE Income tax
AEEMENE Current income tax
—EENEHR - Hong Kong profits tax 15 22 - 1 15 23
— BB AN - Outside Hong Kong 61 82 - - 61 82
—-MEARK - Withholding tax on distribution
—HRAEH AR from subsidiaries and a jointly
Z AN ERNHHE controlled company 7 6 - - 7 6
BEEHE Deferred tax
BRREHEZEZITER Relating to the origination and
e reversal of temporary differences 4 1 - - 4 1
MERBIHE Effect of changes in tax rate - 1 - - - 1
BT BELEERS Over provision in previous year
—BERMNER - Hong Kong profits tax 1) - = - (1) -
— BB A - Outside Hong Kong (4) - = - (4) -
IS Taxation charge 82 112 - 1 82 113

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

A X E B ER QS
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profit before taxation at the tax rate

of Hong Kong to the taxation charge is as follows:

£
Group
REREEH FBECEER
Continuing Discontinued oy
operations operations Total

(LB BEETBEN) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
BRELANER (TRE Profit before taxation (before share

FEAE S REHI DA R of profit of jointly controlled

B N Ala ) companies and an associate) 345 380 18 2 363 382
BEREEAZTA%R Calculated at a taxation rate of

(ZFT+F: 16.5%

ERrans ik ! (2007: 17.5%) 57 67 3 - 60 67
HtBERTAFE 2 Effect of different tax rates in other

% countries 12 28 - 1 12 29
R4 Expenses not deductible for tax

T purpose 9 8 2 - 11 8
AR ZERRIBEEE Deferred tax assets not recognized 22 10 - - 22 10
EARB WA Income not subject to tax (23) (14) (5) - (28) (14)
FERFAAREER Utilization of previously

G| unrecognized tax losses (1) ) - - (1) 1)
MmgFE Withholding tax 11 13 - - 11 13
BEFEEFR R Over provision in previous year (5) - - - (5) -
MEREZTE Effect of changes in tax rates - 1 - - - 1
BIEZ N Taxation charge 82 112 - 1 82 113

AR REBEMNBARZ RBLERZIRE

The provision for taxation of

the Company and its Hong Kong

AEREEFBERINEIRE FE 2B ERD
EMERBREAD 2T AHA (ZFTLF:
BRZtEHA)FE-

HMNBBAINZ W E R B ZMEHEZR
BERANERAER 2B EMETH -

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #

subsidiaries is calculated by applying the current rate of taxation
of 16.5 percent (2007: 17.5 percent) to the estimated assessable
profits earned in or derived from Hong Kong during the year.

Taxation on the profits of other subsidiaries operating outside
Hong Kong is calculated at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER 2SS
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The Group’s consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company of HK$311 million (2007: HK$295 million) includes
a profit of HK$147 million (2007: HK$61 million) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

(In HK$ millions)

Interim dividend declared and
paid of 4.5 HK cents
(2007: 4.5 HK cents) per share

Special interim dividend declared and
paid of 2.0 HK cents
(2007: 2.0 HK cents) per share

Final dividend proposed after
the balance sheet date of 3.0 HK cents
(2007: 5.0 HK cents) per share

Special final dividend proposed after
the balance sheet date of 0.0 HK cent
(2007: 10.0 HK cents) per share

2008

67

30

97

45

45

142

2007

67

30

97

75

149

224

321

At the board meeting held on March 26, 2009, the directors
proposed a final dividend of 3.0 HK cents per share. This
proposed dividend has not been recognized as a liability at

the balance sheet date.
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(NEBEBETRENL) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
EHAEREKE ST -FREAKE 2007 final dividend approved and

FREEE R paid of 5.0 HK cents

(ZFENE : SRAEER) (2006: 5.0 HK cents) per share 75 75
BEHAERERE ST FHRIRARKRS 2007 special final dividend approved

BRAEK—A and paid of 10.0 HK cents

(ZEERE - EREE—aFW) (2006: 15.0 HK cents) per share 149 223

224 298

BREARBERNTIZ T AFERRE
iR EE M &

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on the consolidated profit attributable to shareholders for the year
as set out below:

(WEEGE TAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
FECE TS Continuing operations 290 294
EFBECEER Discontinued operations 21 1

311 295

EREABMNDIEAFEAES HETRN
ZMEFOARBETEHEAT-—BATE
NFZBET+AR(ZZ2EZLF: +OEAT
—E-tT B THAOtER)AE-

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average
of 1,491,608,376 shares (2007: 1,491,322,447 shares) in issue
during the year.

BRESAEFN IERTOEALT—BATE
NF=ZaEtt+ABR(ZZEZTLF

+HOEATF—EB=Z+T-_BE-_FTHaEN++
BR) - BIARFERNE BTN Z niEFEERE
MEBZRBIBEARRRIBRESNEIRE ZFIER
TEBREYBITEMmBETZRMD 2 NEF
HRBENAE—FT—aN+EBRk (=T F:
t+N\BETFZE=+ER)THE-

The diluted earnings per share is based on 1,491,608,376 shares
(2007: 1,491,322,447 shares) which is the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year plus the weighted
average of 91,144 shares (2007: 787,037 shares) deemed to be
issued if all outstanding share options granted under the share
option scheme of the Company had been exercised.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(LERBETREN)

el
A-2RNE-A-R
BELE

e
HE-HEATREL
it

RZBRNFTA=1-R

ZRTER

HE
R-EENF-A-H
HEER
AERIE
Ha
HE-HEAAREL
HE

R-EENFT-A=T-H

(In HKS millions)

Cost

At January 1, 2008
Translation difference
Additions

Disposal of a subsidiary
Disposals

At December 31, 2008

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

At January 1, 2008

Tranglation difference

Charge for the year

Impairment

Disposal of a subsidiary

Disposals

At December 31, 2008

RZBENE+-H=+-A2RESE Net book value at December 31, 2008

MEEDHR=F

NER_ZEZLF

T-A=T-BLFEXH -BESRAEE

MERE - RML

RERBZEAEBHE

AlEeBEzZR - AJHESBELEEER

BEBEED R

“EENEFER-_ZTTLF

t-A=tT—Rz@EHERBE-

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

A RXEBERALD

=

RENE
£ HFRR
BAERRE
KAEEZ Leasehold
THRET improvements,
Freehold furniture & HE
land & g7 HE office Motor fit
buildings Buildings Plant equipment vehicles Total
42 24 9 844 22 1,030
(1) - 2 (24) (1) (24)
- - 1 107 1 109
- - (45) (35) (1) (81)
- - (5) (85) ) (92)
4 24 51 807 19 942
7 2 76 643 15 743
- - - (24) - (24)
1 1 5 118 2 127
- - - 8 - 8
- - (27) (23) (1) (51)
- - (8) (81) 2 (88)
8 3 49 641 14 715
33 21 2 166 5 227

Impairment had been charged for the year ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007 respectively. The impairment charge
was the amount by which the carrying amount of the leasehold
improvements, furniture and office equipment exceeded its
recoverable amount which was determined based on the value-
in-use of the relevant assets estimated by management as at
December 31, 2008 and 2007 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“EEN\E+-A=1—H

December 31, 2008

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

& Group
HENE
2B KR
BAERE
KAEEZ Leasehold
THRET improvements,
Freehold furniture & e
land & BT e offioe Motor a3t
(WEEBETAEL) (In HK$ millions) buidings Buildings Plant equipment vehicles Total
HAE Cost
e 2y Rt =! At January 1, 2007 37 24 88 722 19 890
BEEE Translation difference - - 2 32 1 3%
RE Additions 5 - 9 124 4 142
e Disposals - - 1) (34) 2 (37)
RZEZ+E+-F=+-H At December 31, 2007 42 24 98 844 22 1,030
ZRIER Accumulated depreciation and
HE impairment
W-TE+E-A-A At January 1, 2007 7 1 69 538 1 629
BEES Translation difference - - 1 24 1 26
TEENE Charge for the year - 1 6 107 2 116
e Impairment - - - 3 - 3
e Disposals - - - (29) 2 (31)
R-E2+E+-A=1-H At December 31, 2007 7 2 76 643 15 743
R=BEtE+=A=+-B2ZREFE Net book value at December 31, 2007 35 2 2 201 7 287

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 #
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@ R_ZTEENFR_ZTZTLF+ A
=t—B IEYE BBELRREUARE
HETAFE-

(o) KAFEZLHWRBFUREEREE-

€ BFZEEMEFESFHNOT:

(LEREETBENL)
ERERA
-tEER+F
=)
EEBIMNEE
-tHEERTF
GEkg)
- ZRATFRY

R+-A=+—8H

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m BB R 2 7

(@) As at December 31 of 2008 and 2007, no property, plant and

equipment was held under finance lease.

(b) The freehold land and buildings are situated in Taiwan and

Indonesia.

(c) The analysis of the net book value of buildings is as follows:

(In HK$ millions)

In Hong Kong, held on
- leases of between
10 and 50 years

Outside Hong Kong, held on
- leases of between
10 and 50 years

- leases of over 50 years

At December 31

&8
Group

2008

18

21

2007

18

22

N
Company
2008 2007

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #



—EENF+_HA=+—H
December 31, 2008

HEME
£ -EAR
BAERE
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture &
¥ office G
(BB EETBEN) (In HK$ millions) Buildings  equipment Total
BAE Cost
RZZZENF-A-BR At January 1, 2008 and
2R N\F+ZA=1+—H December 31, 2008 b 3 14
?E?ﬁ% Accumulated depreciation
—ZEN\F-A-H At January 1, 2008 2 3 5
$¢J§Z nE Charge for the year - - -
RZFF\F+ZA=1-H At December 31, 2008 2 3 5
R-ZBENF+ZA=t+-HZ2 Net book value at
SRE R E December 31, 2008 9 - 9
HEME
EE-GAR
PAERME
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture &
EF office At
(BB EETHEN) (In HK$ millions) Buildings equipment Total
RAE Cost
RZEE+LE-HA—HK At January 1, 2007 and
T+ F+A=1-H December 31, 2007 11 3 14
ZRINE Accumulated depreciation
RZEZ+E—-A—H At January 1, 2007 1 3 4
REEME Charge for the year 1 - 1
AZETLFE+ZR=+—H At December 31, 2007 2 3 5
R-EE+tE+-A=+—-H2 Net book value at
REFE December 31, 2007 9 - 9
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AEEFE - MEFRHKE-

(BB HETREN)
BAE
R-A-BRt-A=1+—H
RRINE

r-A-H

REFHE

Rt+Z—A=+—H

RT-ZRA=t+-BzKREFE

ZHRENMER-_ZTTINFR-_ZTTLHE
+TZA=+—"BAZAFELE—BIEESR
BEEERFELARGE-FEDREL
wWRETEREFER BRI KNE
EHNEREZABRGEZESEMEL G-
R_ZEZENFEF+_A=Z+—RH =W
(BREHEEITHEEFHL) 2B AFE
AEE-BENTREEBEL(ZET L F:
BE-—BRETN\BERL) EBEZXRFERE
ZREMECHESBRAABE-—T-HE L
ZETEF BB -FTEIT) -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m BB R 2 7

The Group has a property which is held for long-term rental yields.

el

Group
(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
Cost
At January 1 and December 31 101 101
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1 17 15
Charge for the year 3
At December 31 20 17
Net book value at December 31 81 84

The fair value of the investment property at December 31, 2008
and 2007 was assessed by an independent professional valuation
firm. Valuation was based on current market value of the land and
on estimate of the replacement cost of building adjusted for age,
condition and functional obsolescence. The total fair value of the
property, including leasehold land and the building portion, was
HK$145 million as at December 31, 2008 (2007: HK$158 million).
In the profit and loss account, rental income relating to investment
property of HK$11 million (2007: HK$10 million) was included.
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The net book value of the investment property is analyzed as

follows:

el

Group
(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
Outside Hong Kong, held on lease of
between 10 and 50 years 81 84
NG|
Company

(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
Unlisted investment (at cost) 817 898
Amounts due from subsidiaries 409 499

As at the balance sheet date of 2008 and 2007, amounts due from
subsidiaries are non-interest bearing, unsecured and repayable on
demand.

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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THREEEI B AR B AR EE Y I
LR HRESI AT AR

The following list contains only the particulars of jointly controlled
companies, all of which are unlisted, which principally affected the
results or assets of the Group:

BYREE ERTRZEAR
HEEHAREH Place of HERGEILE REFEMESR

Name of jointly
controlled company

incorporation
and operation

Percentage of
equity holding

Issued and fully paid share
capital or registered capital

TEEH

Principal activities

2008 2007
Giordano Corporation Limited* RERE 48.7 488 —HEZEBtTAEATR RETERERERAR
Republic of Korea SREERTEEE 2 LER  Retai of apparel and
1,027,660 common stock of accessories
WONS5,000 each
ERCEFERRA" B 49.0 490 C—t+EREBREE BERENHES
Cheong Yiu Enterprises Limited*  Hong Kong AE -z LEk Trading of packaging products
200,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
ARRRAK (BE)ERDR B 9.9 490 —REREESE-—ToEBR AERKEIHREREER
Speedy Garment Manufacturing Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Trading of garments and
(Hong Kong) Company investment holding
Limited*
REARRKAXAERA R B K B 9.9 490 BE-TER RELERFERER
Mainland China HK$10,000,000 [ ke

- I EZ RS R A

RAE R L2 2 A (H519)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m B A R 2 7

Manufacturing and trading of
apparel and accessories

Companies whose shareholdings were reduced during the year (note 19)

Jointly controlled companies held indirectly
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The Group’s share of the assets, liabilities, results and
commitments of its unlisted jointly controlled companies are as

follows:
%
Group

(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
Current assets 206 333
Current liabilities (25) (136)
Non-current assets 82 181
Non-current liabilities (1) 3)
Share of net assets 262 375
Revenue 565 789
Expense (531) (759)
Profit before taxation 34 30
Taxation 9) (7)
Share of profit after taxation 25 23
Operating lease commitments 57 57

There are no contingent liabilities and capital commitments relating
to the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled companies, and
the jointly controlled companies have no contingent liabilities and
capital commitments themselves.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS



(BB B ETRER)

Mty (RAE)
PG AR B 08
P B W R 12 i 8

J

TRABRBRIEFEAE

EHBERRZER:

l}ﬂ

BENTEH

Name of associate

Giordano Fashions L.L.C.*

* HERFZ - BHER

T N\F+=-_A=+—H

— = =

December 31, 2008

Al

BXEXREEZHF

B R4S i B
Place of
incorporation
and operation

WA RS RE
United Arab Emirates

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m B A R 2 7

(In HK$ millions)

Unlisted shares (at cost)
Share of post-acquisition profits
Share of post-acquisition reserves

%8
Group

2008 2007

1 1

41 41

1 1

43 43

The following list contains only the particulars of an associate
which is unlisted and principally affected the results or assets of
the Group:

BFERGEDILE
Percentage of
equity holding

2008

20.0

*

BOTR2BARRAE
Issued and fully paid
share capital

2007

200 =TREKREE-T
DR RS B RE
AR R
3,000 shares of AED1,000 each

an associate held indirectly

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 #
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RZZEZNFRA-+TtA AEBETVE
EMEURSERENT _E=-+8TH
% 3% 8 Z Higrowth Ventures Limited (31L#E
BRHEX (EB)ARARZEREERAR)
BAZ=ZTNE - #=z ZARARAAEE
BAZMTNEE 2 HRAZEGHRE - ZRXHR
ZETEN\FARNAZHATRE  ASESKESHE
wAEE-FLABIT

A Higrowth Ventures Limiteds2a T2 & D 2
NBNERCETDEATLECESREE
MRZZEZENF+ A=+ —HEAQAFES

st
= o
7t
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The Group’s interest in its unlisted associate is as follows:

%
Group
(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
Assets 62 59
Liabilities (19) (16)
Share of net assets 43 43
Revenue 108 93
Profit before taxation 11 12
Taxation - _
Share of profit after taxation 11 12

On May 27, 2008, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its 39.1 percent interest in Higrowth
Ventures Limited (the immediate holding company of Speedy
Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong) Company Limited), a jointly
controlled company owned by the Group as to 49.0 percent at a
cash consideration of HK$42.2 million. Upon the completion of
the transaction on June 2, 2008, the Group recorded a gain on
disposal of HK$17 million.

The remaining 9.9 percent interest in Higrowth Ventures Limited
was reclassified as available-for-sale financial asset and was
measured at fair value as at December 31, 2008.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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RZEZENFNA-++H ARFFILE
EREUNRSEBBE T B tEBTHE
FERERKEE Z Placita Holdings Limited
([Placita]) B9 2 —+—# % - RIFZ B -
BRTZANAZTAEATHEO +REBBRA
EAEERARTEDZ=ZTERITZERA
BesHsEANATREATHEMN K
Placitaz B5EMR ([EBSER]) - ltiN EFHE
BT ARRMBERZRGEE MARREE
RTERFEARZABERE-EFAMAR
AIERAFALBE =T _att+E8TKkE%
BER MARAANRAE AR ZFRUEE
ZFEENTETHEZELER ZXFHER
T NFENATZBETZREEIRE
FERRRB YR _ZZENFN\A=-+HA
TR S

%ﬁ%%L’ﬂﬁﬁﬂEW%@F?EEM
RVPELE AFEEIRFRRERZESF
FRAFXMBERREHFH-

R_EENF+_A=+—HAZELEREE
AR A TEERES _THENTET-
REZEREATFEREZEMEEZ A FE
gHenEaRcERASEMEA (HES) -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m B A R 2 7

On June 27, 2008, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of its 21.0 percent interest in
Placita Holdings Limited (“Placita”), which is principally engaged
in garment manufacturing businesses, at a cash consideration
of HK$22.9 million. As part of the agreement, the remaining
6,055,440 Ordinary Shares representing the Group’s remaining
30.0 percent of the total issued share capital of Placita held by
the Company were redesignated into 6,055,440 preference shares
of Placita (the “Preference Shares”). Furthermore, the Purchaser
shall grant to the Company a put option and the Company shall
grant to the Purchaser a call option on the Preference Shares,
under which the Purchaser may acquire the Preference Shares
from the Company at HK$32.7 million within five years whilst
the Company may sell the Preference Shares to the Purchaser
at HK$27.8 million after two years. The transaction was
approved by the shareholders in the Special General Meeting on
August 13, 2008 and was completed on August 25, 2008.

The Preference Shares and the related options are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The fair value will be re-assessed
by a professional valuation firm at year end and the end of each
subsequent period.

The fair value of the Preference Shares and the related options is
HK$25.4 million as at December 31, 2008. Changes in fair values
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recorded
in other income in the profit and loss account (note 5).
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The results and cash flows of the discontinued operations up to
the completion date included in the consolidated profit and loss
account and the consolidated cash flow statement are set out

below:
(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
Turnover 338 521
Cost of sales (261) (402)
Gross profit 77 119
Other income 3 2
Distribution, administrative and

other operating expenses (85) (118)
Operating (loss)/profit (5) 3
Finance expense (1) (1
(Loss)/Profit before taxation (6) 2
Taxation - (1)

Discontinued operations

(Loss)/Profit for the year (6) 1
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 24 -
18 1

(Loss)/Profit attributable to:

Shareholders of the Company 21 1
Minority interests (3) -
18 1

Net cash inflow from operating activities 53 30
Net cash outflow from investing activities (3) (16)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (49) (15)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
discontinued operations 1 (1)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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(BB B ETAENMN)
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GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(In HK$ millions)

Cash consideration received
Fair value on redesignation of
preference share

Less: Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Bank loans
Minority interests

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Realisation of exchange reserve

Total gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Analysis of the net cash inflow
from the disposal of a subsidiary:
Cash consideration received
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of
Professional fee

Analysis of the net cash outflow from
the disposal of a subsidiary

2008

23

24

47

30
77
148
25
(136)
(97)
(23)

24

23

24

23
(25)

(2)
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HELH
BARE e
Leasehold BANE
land Rental &%t
prepayments prepayments Total

(LBEEBEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2008 2008 2007
R-A-BZEEFE Net book value at January 1 238 94 332 321
HEES Translation difference 2 7 9 10
NE Additions - 58 58 19
KEEHE Amortization for the year 9) (22) (31) (18)
Rt-_A=+—RzEEFE Net book value at December 31 231 137 368 332
REHS Current portion (9) (33) (42) 1)
REE D Long-term portion 222 104 326 311
AELHENZEBS O Leasehold land prepayments are analyzed as follows:
(LEEBZETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
R-A-BZEmFE Net book value at January 1 160 165
REEHE Amortization for the year (5) (5)
R+-A=Z+—BZEmFE Net book value at December 31 155 160
REEH Current portion (5) (5)
REE S Long-term portion 150 155

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & # = m BB R 2o &
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HETHBEBNRIEBNEEEMNNKEHEEY Leasehold land prepayments represent prepaid operating lease

e ZERAERERSKEEFHBE 2R
EFED I

payments. The costs are amortized over the leasehold period and

their net book values are analyzed as follows:

£ N
Group Company
(WEBEEE TRENL) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2007 2008 2007
EEBRAE In Hong Kong, held on
-+FERTF — leases of between
GiERS) 10 and 50 years 164 170 155 160
EBEBUINGE Outside Hong Kong, held on
-+FERTF — leases of between
GiERo) 10 and 50 years 43 43 - -
- ZRAETFRY - leases of over 50 years 24 25 = -
231 238 155 160
58
Group
(K EEHHETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
R Raw materials 9 56
EREm Work in progress 8 70
2K Finished goods 280 315
297 441

FEECHIARERLCHRAEHEKAH
REB_TAEZARET (T2 LEF:
AE_+TREAT=A8T) -

The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included
in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$2,609 million (2007:
HK$2,593 million).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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£8 YN
Group Company
(BB FETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2007 2008 2007
JiE s BR 3R Trade receivables 253 343 - -
B ORE R Less: Provision for impairment (5) (10) - -
W R FE Trade receivables — net 248 333 - -
Hib s - B Other receivables, including
D SEE R deposits and prepayments 175 171 3 1
423 504 3 1
BRIRENEARBEEIN REREERBE LT Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally allows
HTYEEZEREFPIH A +HEEH an average credit period of 60 days to its trade customers.
HWARAINPEWNERSNZEHREE - BEIE Despite some of the trade receivables being settled after the credit
EBIE A SRA AN EREKE - FTIAREEA period, management expects that the balances are recoverable
BERANDEAEREEE- within one year; therefore, these balances are classified as current
assets.
REEH BRI EFNM RREE ) 2 Rk As at the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis from the
BIEZHZA TN T: invoice date of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
debts) is as follows:
58
Group
(LB EETRENL) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
==+H 0 - 30 days 196 227
—+ EXRTH 31 - 60 days 37 70
At—ZA+A 61 - 90 days 10 21
wA+A Over 90 days 5 15
248 333
FEWBER 7 BEEMEBEL A FEYE - BE The carrying amount of trade receivables are stated
ErEZoHNE RN REBE 2 EIW approximately at fair value. There is no concentration of credit
R EEREZEERR - risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large

number of internationally dispersed customers.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & # = o BB R o &
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R-ZEENF+_A=+—1H @HEL
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HAS S ZHREAOWAT

(BB GETAEN)
Tz =+H
B=+1H

FEW RV ER R TIABRERP A
FBRIEAEERRBERRNOE S E
W ERBERT REBESERERK
AR K P S o

FRAREEENEDY (BESELERS
BES)MT
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As at December 31, 2008, trade receivables of HK$15 million
(2007: HK$36 million) were past due but not impaired. These
related to a number of customers for whom there had been
no recent history of default. Their ageing analysis from the
due date is as follows:

%8
Group

(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007

0 - 30 days 10 18

Over 30 days 5 18

15 36

Impairment loss in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components,

is as follows:
%H
Group

(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
At January 1 10 10
Disposal of a subsidiary (2) -
Set off against trade receivables (7) -
Provision for the year 4 -
At December 31 5 10

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #



1 51 2 8% B &Y 78 Uk AR 75 B2 1 3R B B i
MEP  KEEEFABEHR R RE D
FEU R K - L FERR B E R R - K
SEUEBEBARFIFEEAERR -

(BB GETRENL)

ERE
“tREBREREEEE R
gl

ERITR2HAR:
TOHEAT-BATEERTEA-T/UK
(ZZZLF THEEAT-BRT—8
“FERAE-TAR)
BREEEETILZEBRK

REFERN BETRAZEH
BRWAT

SHREEEERIIZ BB
R—HA—-H

TR

Wt+-—A=+—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #

—EENF+_A=+—H
December 31, 2008

The individually impaired receivables relate to customers that
are in financial difficulties and management assesses that
only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts were
recognized. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
Authorized:
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$0.05 each 100 100

Issued and fully paid:
1,491,646,518 ordinary shares
(2007: 1,491,512,518
ordinary shares)
of HK$0.05 each 75 75

Details of the movement in the issued share capital during the year
are set out below:

R EA
Number of shares
2008 2007
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
At January 1 1,491,512,518 1,490,852,518
Issue of shares 134,000 660,000
At December 31 1,491,646,518 1,491,512,518

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company, the
Company issued 134,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each in the capital of the Company to option-holders who
exercised their rights attached to share options during the
year.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company in the
year ranked pari passu with the then existing shares of the
Company in all respects.

A summary of the share option scheme and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the year
are set out on pages 144 to 149.

During the year, the Company did not repurchase any of its
shares.

As at December 31, 2008, 1,800,000 ordinary shares (2007:
1,800,000 shares) were held by a jointly controlled company.
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The reserves of the Group and the Company as at December 31, 2008
are analyzed as follows:

&8 N
Group Company

(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007 2008 2007
Contributed surplus 383 383 540 540
Capital redemption reserve 3 3 3 3
Share premium 608 608 608 608
Share options reserve 18 7 18 7
Exchange reserve (15) 57 - -
Other reserves 101 113 - -
Available-for-sale financial asset

reserve 3 - - -
Retained profits 679 681 125 298

1,780 1,852 1,294 1,456
Proposed final and
special dividends (note 12(a)) (45) (224) (45) (224)

Total reserves 1,735 1,628 1,249 1,232

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company represents
credit arising from a group reorganisation pursuant to a scheme of
arrangement which was completed on May 29, 1995. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) the contributed
surplus is distributable to the shareholders.

Details of the main items in other reserves are as follows:

(@) According to the relevant laws and financial regulations, the
statutory reserve funds of the subsidiaries in Mainland China
may be used to make up prior years’ losses, if any, and to
increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS



—EENF+_-_A=+—H
December 31, 2008

(o) RIEFREBRGRBRGEAN LEERFXE
ER RBREZ KRS QB2 EE
BELEMRBEBIRIATARERERK
EIEEBEEAR MR BIFREREIR

%o

© REMIABAEREEERRE.
Pz RBE & R B 2B 2 QR ZATE
BES  BREAEREIN FAHEDEZ
Ao

EREREXRBABEEIMNEEEZE2LERRN
BRDEER ZHEMIERBBE -

AEERFANECHEEERBBEZE
(R — B E 2 R IERT ) 0 F

(WEREELHER)
RoFENF-A-E
#EEE

S EELICONE
A%

REEFIA
R-TENFT-A=1-A
e i
AHEE

S EELVEY
(3A)
REERIIZ

RZERLE+-A=t—H

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m BB R 2 7

(b) In accordance with the Korean Tax Incentive Limitation Law
and Korean Commercial Code, the statutory reserve fund
and other reserves of the jointly controlled company in the
Republic of Korea may only be used to offset a future deficit
or be transferred to capital stock, but not for cash dividends.

(c) According to the United Arab Emirates Commercial
Companies Law, the statutory reserve fund of the associate in
United Arab Emirates is not available for distribution except as
provided in the Federal Law.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions.

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)
during the year is as follows:

&
BHFE AARZ
Accelerated RRER

accounting  Unremitted Hitr Bt
(In HK$ millions) depreciation profits Others Total
At January 1, 2008 () 96 (21) 72
Translation difference - (24) 1 (23)
(Credited)/charged to profit
and loss account (4) 4 7 7
Credited to equity - - (5) (5)
At December 31, 2008 7) 76 (18) 51
At January 1, 2007 () 89 (17) 69
Translation difference - - (1) (1)
Charged/(credited) to profit
and loss account - 7 (5) 2
Charged to equity - - 2 2
At December 31, 2007 () 96 (21) 72
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The deferred taxation credited to equity during the year comprised
the tax on the unrealized exchange gain of a long-term loan to a
subsidiary.

The Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets of HK$86 million
(2007: HK$67 million) arising mainly from tax losses. These
unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent of HK$56 million
(2007: HK$36 million) will expire within 1 to 10 years from
December 31, 2008. The remaining portion is mainly related to
the losses of subsidiaries in Australia and Germany which has no
expiry date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance

sheet.
%
Group
(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
Deferred tax assets (26) (37)
Deferred tax liabilities 77 109
51 72

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(In HK$ millions)

Trade payables
Other payables and
accrued expenses

Long-term portion

Current portion

58 YN
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

231 300 - -
242 346 2 2
473 646 o 2
(22) - - -
451 646 2 2

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

(In HK$ millions)

0 - 30 days

31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
Over 90 days

el
Group
2008 2007
184 251
35 36
11 7
1 6
231 300

The carrying amount of trade payables are stated approximately at

fair value.
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The Group’s net current assets, defined as current assets less
current liabilities, amounted to HK$742 million and HK$736
million in 2008 and 2007 respectively. The Company’s net current
assets was HK$368 million and HK$469 million in 2008 and 2007
respectively.

The Group’s total assets less current liabilities amounted to
HK$2,005 million and HK$2,135 million in 2008 and 2007
respectively. The Company’s total assets less current liabilities
was HK$1,369 million in 2008 compared with HK$1,531 million in
2007.

%8
Group
(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
Cash and bank balances 532 570
Less: Bank deposits with maturity
over three months from
date of deposits (2) (3)
530 567

Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group are cash
and bank balances totaling HK$245 million (2007: HK$277 million)
denominated in Renminbi.

The effective interest rate on bank deposits of the Group was
3.6 percent (2007: 3.4 percent); these deposits have an average
maturity of less than 3 months.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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£8 YN
Group Company
(BB FETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2007 2008 2007
EAREER Trust receipts bank loans
(mE) (unsecured) = 20 = -
MHRITER Short-term bank loans
(EEHH) (unsecured) 78 76 58 46
78 96 58 46

R-IEE+F ETFERECETSEZERERL In 2007, certain inventories were held under trust receipts bank

BETHEHF- loans arrangements.

AREBZEAZBEEZLRBITEZTHNER The effective interest rate of Group’s trust receipts and short term

MEAEAESZ BN (ZEZ+L+F - BABHZ bank loans was 2.4 percent (2007: 2.6 percent); these bank loans

TEON) o ERTERZFEH R EHIR A& D have an average maturity of less than 3 months.

R={EH -

() RZEZN\F+-_A=+—H KrEER (a) As at December 31, 2008, the Group and the Company had
AKABIMEBEEES BHAE IHRLER future aggregate minimum lease charges payable under non-
P RNAKRBHEZECELHENFIKE cancellable operating leases in respect of retail shops, office
NHEEBRWOT : premises, factories and warehouses as set out below:

£8 N
Group Company

(UEEGE TREN) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2007 2008 2007
—FR Within one year 622 624 4 2
—F%E After one year but

FER within five years 668 834 7 -
RFNE Over five years 2 32 = -

1,292 1,490 11 2

EHESHNBRESTRERIEST  HeE The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and
A ERERE - T 2KEEER renewal rights. The operating lease rentals of certain outlets
SR EREREHE SN INEERTE are based on the higher of a minimum guaranteed rental or a
2HE (URSEAE) - P AETIIR sales level based rental. The minimum guaranteed rental has
SZEREHSTE - been used to arrive at the above commitments.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(b) As at December 31, 2008, the Group and the Company has
future aggregate minimum lease income receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of retail shops
and factories as set out below:

3 N
Group Company
(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007 2008 2007
Within one year 24 24 16 17
After one year but
within five years 24 39 14 29
48 63 30 46

As at December 31, 2008, the Group has the following capital
commitments in respect of leasehold improvement, furniture and

fixtures:
3 YN
Group Company
(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007 2008 2007
Contracted but not provided for - 1 - -

Authorized but not contracted for - - - -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS
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As at December 31, 2008, the total notional amount of
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts to which the
Group has committed are as follows:

% YN
Group Company
(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007 2008 2007
Forward foreign
exchange contracts - 13 - -

As at December 31, 2008, there was no notional amount of
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts to which the
Group had committed.There was no fair value gain or loss
of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts as at
December 31, 2008 (2007: loss of HK$2 million) The fair value was
calculated based on market values of equivalent instruments at the
balance sheet date and was included in other payables.
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Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subject to common control or common significant
influence.

During the year, certain subsidiaries traded with jointly
controlled companies and an associate in the ordinary
and usual course of business. Details relating to these
transactions are as follows:

%
Group
(In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
Sales to:
jointly controlled companies 130 159
an associate 249 204
379 363
Purchases from:
jointly controlled companies 248 438
Rental income from:
a jointly controlled company 5 10

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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R+ A=+—HEW/ERBEEA TR Amounts due from/to these related parties at December 31
1A are:
£8
Group

(LB BETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2008 2007
) N O Amounts due from:

HEEZEH A E] jointly controlled companies 5 9

—BE DT an associate 27 20

32 29

e A L5008 Amounts due to:

HEEZEH A E] jointly controlled companies 1 2
RZEZNF+_A=+—8"  LillfERK As at December 31, 2008, the above amounts due from
BB A TEHEN B A TSEREE 95 related parties and amounts due to related parties are
f2 B 7E FE UK BR 2k K E 4t FE Uk X ER H A i reflected in trade and other receivables and other payables
NE- respectively.

BEEDAEECEEARE S AMNESE - The directors regard the five highest paid individuals as
E & R SRR FTOWE - the key management of the Group whose remuneration is

disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MEARERE
Name of
subsidiary

BIBERAAN

Bluestar Exchange Limited *

RERFKEHHERAA
Bluestar Exchange Worldwide
Limited *

East Jean Limited *

BREFEFEERGARAA

G & B Sourcing Macao
Commercial Offshore Limited *

Giordano (Australia) Pty. Limited *

Giordano (Japan) Limited *

ERRBERRE "

Giordano Limited *

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #

B 3L 1t 2
Place of
incorporation

EE
Hong Kong

EE
Hong Kong

EE
Hong Kong

il

Macau

i

Australia

BA

Japan

EE
Hong Kong
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December 31, 2008

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
as at December 31, 2008

BERGZ
ERES =
Effective
percentage of
equity holding

2008 2007
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

86 79
100 100
100 100

BROKZEAR

R A E A
Issued and fully paid
share capital

or registered capital

—EER
BREEAB—ToERAR

3,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

ATHEBR
BREEAB—ToERAR

650,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

+EK
BREEAB T AR

100,000 ordinary shares of
HK$10 each

RFIETET
MOP100,000

+TER
BREE - BTz EEK

700,000 ordinary shares of
AUD1 each

—FZ= R
BREELERTZ EBR

1,020 ordinary shares of
JPY50,000 each

L&k
BREEEY-—BTzEER

50,000 ordinary shares of
HK$100 each

TEER/CERE
Principal activities/
place of operation

BETERDERER
EAm/EE

Retail and distribution of apparel
and accessories/Hong Kong

HETERERERAR/AE
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Taiwan

HETERERERAR/AE
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Taiwan

KEKE 52

Garment trading/Macau

EETERERERARRN
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Australia

RETEREREMAR/ER
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Japan

BETERDERER
EAm/EE

Retail and distribution of apparel
and accessories/Hong Kong

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B R E K ER LA
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MEARERE
Name of
subsidiary

Giordano (M) Sdn. Bhd.

ERREPIERRE

Giordano (Macau) Limited *

Giordano Originals (Singapore)
Private Limited

PT. Giordano Indonesia *

FIERHERERAR
(Kfit)

Shenzhen Tiger Garment Ltd. *

(note)

RREEARATF

Tiger Enterprises Limited

Walton International Ltd. *

B 3L 1t 2
Place of
incorporation

BRAL
Malaysia

bd

Macau

g

Singapore

e

Indonesia

B A BE
Mainland China

B
Hong Kong

HEHE

Cayman Islands

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

A X E B ER QS

BERGZ
ERES=
Effective
percentage of
equity holding

2008 2007
100 100
100 100
100 100

40 40
100 100
100 100
100 100

BROKZEAR

R A E A
Issued and fully paid
share capital

or registered capital

=+REBER
BREESRAZRE -T2

350,000 ordinary shares of
RM1 each

RFELET
AR EHER K
MOP50,000 represented by
2 quotas

MR -—BATEE T
$$1,900,002

—THEKR
BREE-BEHNEBLERRK

1,500 ordinary shares of
IDR1,000,000 each

ARE_E-TETER
RMB210,100,000

— Tk
BREBEE-—T2LER:
ATERSREEEE -T2
BERZEETR

1,000 ordinary shares of HK$1
each, 60,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each

—BTZR
BREE-—ETZEBR
102 ordinary shares of US$1 each

TEER/CERE
Principal activities/
place of operation

BETEREREBA @/
BRAD

Retail of apparel and
accessories/Malaysia

RETEREREHADRM
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Macau

RETERBHSRER
BL 8 78 /AT 3%

Retailing and trading of apparel
and accessories/Singapore

BETERE ERAmK
HEBER/R

Retail of apparel, accessories
and related products/
Indonesia

REZR HEREERER
Bt 188 P /P B K e

Investment holding,
manufacturing and retailing
of apparel and accessories/
Mainland China

RERR KKESHR
REERRG/PEKRE

Investment holding, trading
of garment products and
provision of management
services/Mainland China

HERBAEEMNE

Licensing of trademarks

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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Name of Place of
subsidiary incorporation
REGEEEEZHBAR

Subsidiaries disposed during the year
R REREERAR * (AF) FEAE
Mainland China

RRZEREABRLQR (H7) HEKRE

Mainland China

sERE (FB)BRARA
Gloss Mind Apparel (Hong Kong)
Limited *

EE
Hong Kong

Bt ERARBINEBEDLFE -

* EIEFF B2 M8 2 7]

AEEHBHRREN _ZTTAF=A_+/<H
EE=S@B-

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #

BERGZ
RS
Effective

percentage of
equity holding

2008

Note: These are wholly foreign owned enterprises.

*

2007

51

51

51

—EE\F+-A=+-F

BROKZEAR

R A E A
Issued and fully paid
share capital

or registered capital

BERRET
HK$5,000,000

BE—TET
HK$10,000,000

) §
BREBES -T2 EER
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

Subsidiaries held indirectly

December 31, 2008

TEER/CERE
Principal activities/
place of operation

meEERE/PEAR
Manufacturing of apparel/
Mainland China

BEEERHERE/PEKRE
Manufacturing and trading of
apparel/Mainland China

BEREE S RIRMHIEH
SRR/

Trading of apparel products and
providing apparel sourcing
services/Hong Kong

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors
on March 26, 2009.
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Summary of the share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)

is as follows:

As incentives or rewards for the contribution or potential

contribution to the Group from the selected eligible persons.

(i)

(i

(i)

(@) any director or proposed director (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive
director), employee or proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for;

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any controlling shareholder or any company

controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder:

(@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,

contractor, agent or representative of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to,

(d) any customer of, or

(e) any landlord or tenant (including any sub-tenant) of;

and, for the purposes of the Scheme, shall include any

company controlled by one or more persons belonging to any
of the above classes of eligible persons.
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As at March 26, 2009, the maximum number of shares available
for issue is 68,892,851, representing approximately five percent of
the issued share capital of the Company.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to any eligible person (including
canceled, exercised and outstanding options), in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed one percent of the
shares in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date on
or after the date on which the option is granted as the directors
may determine in granting the option and expiring at the close of
business on such date as the directors may determine in granting
the option but in any event shall not exceed ten years from the
date of grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the
grant of the option is accepted).

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is
HK$1.00.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The option price per share payable on the exercise of an option is
to be determined by the directors provided always that it shall be
at least the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares on the date of offer;

(i) the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(i) the nominal amount of a share.

The Scheme remains in force until January 24, 2012.
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RAREFRN  NNTIEEE S sEEEHy T During the year, movements of the Company’s share options are set

out below:
BREHA
Number of share options
REFER
RZBENE REFER REAFER THIER R-BENF
-B-H Rl (g4 Canceled) T=—R=+-H EBRITEE
2 Granted Exercised lapsed 2t Exercise
BERAL Balance as at during during during Balance as at price REAH kil
Eligible person 01/01/2008 the year the year the year 12/31/2008 per share Date of grant Exercisable period
BT (A/8/F) (A/8/%F)
HKS  (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)
%
Director
2R - 600,000 - - 600,000 3.520 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter - 600,000 - - 600,000 3.840 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
- 600,000 - - 600,000 4.160 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
- 1,800,000 - - 1,800,000
BH% 1,666,000 - - - 1,666,000 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2003 - 04/07/2012
MAH Chuck On, Bernard 1,666,000 - - - 1,666,000 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2004 - 04/07/2012
1,668,000 - - - 1,668,000 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2005 - 04/07/2012
- 400,000 - - 400,000 3.520 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
- 400,000 - - 400,000 3.840 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
- 400,000 - - 400,000 4.160 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
5,000,000 1,200,000 - - 6,200,000
HMEEW2(1)
Ex-Director (Note (1))
BXE 1,666,000 - - 1,666,000 - 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2003 - 04/07/2012
FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles 1,666,000 - - 1,666,000 - 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2004 - 04/07/2012
1,668,000 - - 1,668,000 - 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2005 - 04/07/2012
5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & # = m BB R 2o &



BREYE

Number of share options

REEER
RZZZENE REEER  REEER THRY RZBBNE
-A—-H Rl (oL Canceled) T=R=+—-H EBRITEE
2 Granted Exercised lapsed it Exercise
RERAL Balance as at during during during Balance as at price REBH g3
Eligible person 01/01/2008 the year the year the year 12/31/2008 per share  Date of grant Exercisable period
BT (A/8/%F) (A/8/%F)
HKS  (MM/DD/YYYY) (MWDD/YYYY)
BEANEE 1,092,000 - - 44,000 1,048,000 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2003 - 04/07/2012
Continuous Contract Employees 1,280,000 - - 110,000 1,170,000 4,650 04/08/2002  04/08/2004 - 04/07/2012
1,392,000 - - 120,000 1,272,000 4,650 04/08/2002  04/08/2005 - 04/07/2012
333,000 - - - 333,000 2.795 02/05/2003  02/05/2004 - 02/04/2013
333,000 - - - 333,000 2.795 02/05/2003  02/05/2005 - 02/04/2013
502,000 - - - 502,000 2.795 02/05/2003  02/05/2006 - 02/04/2013
322,000 - 24,000 24,000 274,000 2.650 06/10/2003  06/10/2004 - 06/09/2013
406,000 - 28,000 26,000 352,000 2.650 06/10/2003  06/10/2005 - 06/09/2013
812,000 - 82,000 74,000 656,000 2.650 06/10/2003  06/10/2006 - 06/09/2013
64,000 - - - 64,000 2.785 08/20/2003  08/20/2004 - 08/19/2013
4,000 - - - 4,000 2.785 08/20/2003  08/20/2005 - 08/19/2013
6,000 - - - 6,000 2.785 08/20/2003  08/20/2006 - 08/19/2013
6,000 - - - 6,000 3.300 09/19/2003  09/19/2004 - 09/18/2013
22,000 - - 16,000 6,000 3.300 09/19/2003  09/19/2005 - 09/18/2013
46,000 - - 18,000 28,000 3.300 09/19/2003  09/19/2006 - 09/18/2013
680,000 - - 66,000 614,000 4,500 06/16/2004  06/16/2005 - 06/15/2014
682,000 - - 66,000 616,000 4,500 06/16/2004  06/16/2006 - 06/15/2014
688,000 - - 68,000 620,000 4,500 06/16/2004  06/16/2007 - 06/15/2014
28,000 - - - 28,000 4.235 08/17/2004  08/17/2005 - 08/16/2014
34,000 - - - 34,000 4.235 08/17/2004  08/17/2006 - 08/16/2014
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 4.305 09/30/2004  09/30/2004 - 09/29/2014
264,000 - - 86,000 178,000 4.875 12/30/2004  12/30/2004 - 12/29/2014
2,692,000 - - 48,000 2,644,000 3.896 11/27/2007  11/27/2008 - 11/26/2017
2,692,000 - - 48,000 2,644,000 3.896 11/27/2007  11/27/2009 - 11/26/2017
2,814,000 - - 54,000 2,760,000 3.896 11/27/2007  11/27/2010 - 11/26/2017
- 144,000 - 16,000 128,000 3.896 01/23/2008  01/23/2009 - 01/22/2018
- 144,000 - 16,000 128,000 3.896 01/23/2008  01/23/2010 - 01/22/2018
- 162,000 - 18,000 144,000 3.896 01/23/2008  01/23/2011 - 01/22/2018
- 22,514,000 - 422,000 22,092,000 3.520 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
- 7,686,000 - 80,000 7,606,000 3.840 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
- 7,686,000 - 80,000 7,606,000 4.160 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
18,194,000 38,336,000 134,000 1,500,000 54,896,000
Hit 1,640,000 - - - 1,640,000 4,150 01/27/2004  01/27/2005 - 01/26/2014
Others 1,860,000 - - - 1,860,000 4,975 12/29/2004  12/29/2004 - 12/28/2014
3,500,000 - - - 3,500,000
CE
Total 31,694,000 41,336,000 134,000 6,500,000 66,396,000

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes:

1. Mr. FUNG Wing Cheong, Charles resigned as a director of the
Company with effect from July 15, 2008.

2. The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately
before the date on which the options were exercised by the
Continuous Contract Employees was HK$3.39.

3. The market value per share as at December 31, 2008 was
HK$1.95.
4. The closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on

which the options were granted were as follows:

Closing price per share
immediately before

Date of grant the date of grant

HK$3.40
HK$3.22

January 23, 2008
July 30, 2008

The fair value per share option granted during the financial year 2008
was HK$0.3. The fair value of each option granted was estimated on
the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with
the following assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 2.7 — 3.7 percent, being the approximate
yield of ten-year Exchange Fund Note on

the grant date

Expected dividend average historical dividends of

21.5 HK cents per share

Expected volatility 31.3 — 31.9 percent based on historical

volatility

Expected life ten years

The Black-Scholes option pricing model is developed to estimate the
fair value of publicly traded options that have no vesting restrictions and
are fully transferable. In addition, such option pricing model requires
input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock
price volatility. Any changes in the subjective input assumptions may

materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of
Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) will be held at Block B,
3rd Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong on Wednesday, June 3, 2009 at 9:30 a.m. for the
following purposes:

As ordinary business:

1.  To receive and consider the audited financial statements and
the reports of the directors and auditor for the year ended
December 31, 2008;

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2008;

3. To re-elect retiring directors;

4. To re-appoint the auditor and authorize the directors to fix its
remuneration;

As special business:

5. To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without modifications,
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“THAT:

() a general mandate be and is hereby unconditionally given
to the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
to allot, issue or otherwise deal with additional shares in
the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require the exercise of
such power, subject to the following conditions:

(@) such mandate shall not extend beyond the Relevant
Period save that the directors of the Company may
during the Relevant Period make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require the exercise
of such powers at any time during or after the end of the
Relevant Period; and

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #
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(o)

the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of
the Company which may be allotted, issued or otherwise
dealt with by the directors of the Company pursuant to
such mandate, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights
Issue; or (ii) the exercise of rights of subscription or
conversion under the terms of any warrants or other
securities issued by the Company carrying a right to
subscribe for or purchase shares of the Company; or
(i) the exercise of any option under any share option
scheme of the Company adopted by its shareholders
for the grant or issue to eligible persons options to
subscribe for or rights to acquire shares of the Company;
or (iv) any scrip dividend or other similar scheme
implemented in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the
Company, shall not exceed ten percent of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in
issue at the date of passing this Resolution; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this

Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(@)

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company;

the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by its Bye-
Laws or any applicable laws of Bermuda to be held; and

the revocation or variation of the authority given
under this Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period

fixed by the directors of the Company to holders of shares on

its Register of Members on a fixed record date in proportion

to their holdings of shares (subject to such exclusions or other

arrangements as the directors of the Company may deem

necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or

having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws

of or the requirements of any recognized regulatory body or

stock exchange in any territory outside Hong Kong).”; and

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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6.

To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without modifications,

the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“THAT:

(1)

a general mandate be and is hereby unconditionally given to

the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period to

exercise all powers of the Company to purchase shares in the

capital of the Company subject to the following conditions:

(a)

the exercise of all powers pursuant to such mandate
shall be subject to and in accordance with all applicable
laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any
other applicable stock exchange; and

the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the share
capital of the Company which may be purchased
pursuant to such mandate shall not exceed ten percent
of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company in issue at the date of passing this
Resolution; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this

Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(a)

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company;

the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by its
Bye-Laws or any applicable laws of Bermuda to be held;
and

the revocation or variation of the authority given
under this Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.”

By Order of the Board
YUNG Mei Yee
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, April 22, 2009

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 & #



Bret

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

ANN

NEREFELXBEMBRZIRGARKE
FREZBRR - GARRIK IR 2K
RELFEH ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%&%ﬁ
HEHRF -XEZRKRBBER/ARFME -

RREZERBE %é%Z?%iﬁﬂm
&%X#@M@Y“ REBAREBERZS

REEARBEXMHZEAN HRBARKEH
HEMBESHEERTEROT/\/ERTXE
ARRANEBEBZBRNBPERL IR R EH
HEERIA WU SELEEFERTAER
TN\ EEPLTRE TREM

ARBEAZEZENFNA—B(EH )
—EENFEFANAZB(EH=) (R
MABEERN)ESERERGOGBFPERLTF
B RBEETEEARZERBREZRBERE
BERZEHRERABHHNAE-_ZTEZTNF A
TZH(EHND)) HERBPXHERSA
BREZEBENR _ZTTENAFREA-_T A
(E28A) TFHEE=+D AR EARARE
BZRDBFEFLSEEEEEDERAA]
Wit AEBEFERRER T\ EE
AL REERTFE-

FPRERBERENRBRERE EERBRL
ERTARAERT —RIRERBEARNRB K
(EERIEAERN/NEIE ) v

R [ 3B P 551 T A E
BB R

NIBRFH

REBAXIMEF LWRUZBBERER
RETRENEXERER EFEEFRIE

TUEREFTARIAENR TSR BENTIER
EES
UAL REPORT 2008 F #

Notes:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened
by the above notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to
attend and, on a poll, vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a
shareholder of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy together with the power of
attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a
notarially certified copy of such power of attorney or authority
must be deposited at the Company’s branch share registrars
in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or

any adjourned meeting.

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, June 1, 2009 to Wednesday, June 3, 2009, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered.
(which will be payable on or about Friday, June 12, 2009, all

In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend

transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrars in
Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, May 29, 2009.

In relation to the above resolutions numbered 5 and 6, approval
is being sought from shareholders for a general mandate to be
given to the directors of the Company to allot new shares and to
repurchase shares of the Company.

An Explanatory Statement which contains important information
concerning the above resolution numbered 6 is appended to the
annual report.

In accordance with the relevant requirements under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and for
good corporate governance practice, the Chairman of the Board
will direct that each of the resolutions set out in the notice of the
Meeting be voted on by poll.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents of the
following information, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of
the contents of the following information.

The following is the explanatory statement, as required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), to provide
information to shareholders of Giordano International Limited (the
“Company”) for their consideration of the proposed granting of a
general mandate to the Company’s directors (the “Directors”) to
repurchase shares of the Company (the “Share Repurchase Mandate”).
The Share Repurchase Mandate, upon obtaining shareholders’ approval
at the Company’s annual general meeting to be held on June 3, 2009
(the “2009 Annual General Meeting”), gives a general authority to
the Directors to repurchase, at any time until the next annual general
meeting of the Company or such earlier period as stated in the relevant
resolution, the issued and fully paid ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
in the capital of the Company (the “Shares”), up to a maximum of
ten percent of its issued share capital at the date of passing of the
relevant resolution.

It is proposed that the Directors may exercise the powers of
the Company to repurchase up to ten percent of the Shares in
issue as at the date of passing of the resolution to approve the
granting to the Directors the Share Repurchase Mandate. As at
March 26, 2009, being the latest practicable date prior to the
printing of this annual report (the “Latest Practicable Date”), the
number of Shares in issue was 1,491,646,518 Shares. Subject to
the passing of the proposed resolution for approving the Share
Repurchase Mandate and on the basis that no further Shares are
issued or repurchased by the Company prior to the date of the
2009 Annual General Meeting, the Company would be allowed
under the Share Repurchase Mandate to repurchase up to a limit
of 149,164,651 Shares.
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The Directors believe that it is in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders for the Directors to have a general authority
from shareholders of the Company to repurchase Shares in
the market. A repurchase of Shares may, depending on market
conditions and funding arrangements at the time, lead to an
enhancement of the net asset value of the Company and/or its
earnings per share and will only be made when the Directors
believe that such repurchase will benefit the Company and its
shareholders.

Repurchases must be funded out of funds legally available for
such purposes in accordance with the laws of Bermuda and the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company. The
Directors propose that repurchases of Shares under the Share
Repurchase Mandate would be financed from the Company’s
internal resources or existing banking facilities.

Whilst the Share Repurchase Mandate, if exercised in full, may
have a material adverse impact on the working capital or gearing
position of the Company, as compared with the position disclosed
in the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2008, the Directors expect to exercise such
mandate if and to such extent only as they are satisfied that the
exercise thereof will not have such a material adverse impact.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The highest and lowest prices per Share at which Shares have

traded on the Stock Exchange in each of the previous 12 months

were as follows:

B RIE
Highest Lowest
BT BT
HK$ HK$
2008
March 3.280 2.660
April 3.620 3.010
May 3.600 3.270
June 3.580 3.100
July 3.250 2.970
August 3.280 2.820
September 3.180 2.520
October 2.800 0.860
November 1.740 1.230
December 2.030 1.590
2009
January 2.160 1.790
February 1.950 1.670

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange to exercise
the powers of the Company to make repurchases pursuant to the
Share Repurchase Mandate in accordance with the Listing Rules,
the laws of Bermuda and the Memorandum of Association and
Bye-Laws of the Company.

None of the Directors nor (to the best of their knowledge having
made all reasonable enquiries) their associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) have any present intention to sell any Shares to the
Company under the Share Repurchase Mandate if such is granted
by the shareholders.

No other connected persons of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) have notified the Company that they have a present
intention to sell Shares to the Company, or have undertaken not to
do so, in the event that the Share Repurchase Mandate is granted
by the shareholders.
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Name

Aberdeen Asset Management Plc
and its associates

Franklin Templeton Investments Corp.

Sanderson Asset Management Limited
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During the six months prior to the Latest Practicable Date, the
Company has not repurchased any Shares whether on the Stock
Exchange or otherwise.

If a shareholder’s proportionate interest in the voting rights of the
Company increases on the Company exercising its powers to
repurchase Shares pursuant to the Share Repurchase Mandate,
such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purpose of
The Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases. As
a result, a shareholder or a group of shareholders acting in concert
could obtain or consolidate control of the Company and become
obliged to make a mandatory offer in accordance with Rules 26
and 32 of The Code on Takeovers and Mergers.

The interests or short positions of the following shareholders
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which have
been disclosed to the Company, at the Latest Practicable Date,
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) and have been recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO;
together with the respective total interests would be increased in
the event that the Directors exercise in full the Share Repurchase
Mandate:

BITERE
BoRmEEZ
BB EEN

Approximate
percentage of

interests if

ERBEIERY the Share
Approximate Repurchase

BB EE percentage Mandate is

No. of shares of interests exercised in full

219,420,018 14.71% 16.34%
119,963,440 8.04% 8.94%
88,530,000 5.94% 6.59%

Accordingly, the Directors are not aware of any consequences
which may arise under The Code on Takeovers and Mergers as
a result of any repurchase made under the Share Repurchase
Mandate.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, Mr. MAH Chuck On,
Bernard and Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Directors of the Company, will
retire from office at the 2009 annual general meeting and will offer
themselves for re-election. The following are the brief biographical
particulars of each of these Directors for the shareholders’ information:

Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard (Executive Director), aged 59, joined
the Group in 1996 and was appointed to the current position of the
Company on June 14, 1999. Mr. Mah is also the Executive Chairman
of the Group’s operations in Mainland China and Group Executive
Director — Global Business Development. He graduated from the
University of Alberta in Canada with a bachelor degree in Business
Administration and is a member of The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Mah had gained extensive
experience in industrial and commercial investment sectors and had
held senior government positions in accounting and auditing in Canada
for 15 years.

Mr. Mah did not hold any directorship in other listed company in the
last three years. He does not have any relationship with any directors,
senior management or substantial shareholders of the Company. As
at March 26, 2009, Mr. Mah has had interests in 1,619,086 shares of
the Company and options to subscribe for 6,200,000 shares of the
Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance), which in aggregate represent approximately 0.52 percent of
the existing issued share capital of the Company.

There is no service contract entered into between the Company and
Mr. Mah; however, he has an agreement with a subsidiary, which is
terminable by either party by giving to the other not less than three
months’ notice in writing. He is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company. His annual
salary together with a guaranteed bonus amounts to approximately
HK$2,632,000. He is also entitled to discretionary bonus, provident
fund contributed by employer and housing allowance. Such emolument
is determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities with the
Group and the prevailing market conditions.

There is no information which is discloseable nor is/was he involved
in any of the matters required to be disclosed pursuant to any of
the requirements under Rules 13.51(2)(h) to 13.51(2)(v) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, and there is no other matter which needs to be brought
to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.
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Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jr (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 68, joined the Company on September 10, 1999. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee and the Compensation Committee of
the Company. He holds an honorary degree of Doctor of Engineering
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and an honorary degree
of Doctor of Laws from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. Lee
is currently an independent non-executive director of AMS Public
Transport Holdings Limited, ITE (Holdings) Limited, Playmates Holdings
Limited, Sam Woo Holdings Limited, VXL Capital Limited and Wang On
Group Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong.

Dr. Lee was formerly a deputy of Hong Kong SAR, the 9th and 10th
National People’s Congress, PRC, a member of the Hong Kong
Legislative Council from 1978 to 1997, a senior member of the Hong
Kong Legislative Council from 1988 to 1991 and a member of the Hong
Kong Executive Council from 1985 to 1992. He has taken an active role
in public service.

Dr. Lee does not have any relationship with any directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders of the Company nor hold any
other position with the Company and other members of the Group. As
at March 26, 2009, he does not have any interests in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

There is no service contract entered into between the Company
and Dr. Lee. He is appointed for a term of three years and subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant to the Bye-Laws
of the Company. He is entitled to receive an annual director’s fee of
HK$350,000 which is determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing market conditions.

Dr. Lee has served the Group for over nine years. He has met the
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and has submitted to the
Stock Exchange a written confirmation concerning his independence
and given an annual confirmation of his independence to the Company.
The Board, therefore, considers him to continue to be independent and
believes he should be re-elected in view of his extensive experience and
valuable contribution to the Board.

There is no information which is discloseable nor is/was he involved
in any of the matters required to be disclosed pursuant to any of the
requirements under Rules 13.51(2)(h) to 13.51(2)(v) of the Listing Rules,
and there is no other matter which needs to be brought to the attention
of the shareholders of the Company.
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June 1, 2009 to June 3, 2009

(both days inclusive)

June 3, 2009

Interim Dividend

Special Interim Dividend
Paid on

Proposed Final Dividend
Payable on

4.5 HK cents per share
2.0 HK cents per share
September 23, 2008
3.0 HK cents per share
June 12, 2009
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B3 © (852) 2746 4668

BE : (852) 2370 8864

BT EH investorrelations@giordano.com.hk

www.giordano.com.hk
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Stock Exchange of Hong Kong 709
Bloomberg 709 HK
Reuters 0709.HK
William YUE

Director of Corporate and External Affairs
Giordano International Limited

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2746 4668
Facsimile (852) 2370 8864
e-malil : investorrelations@giordano.com.hk

www.giordano.com.hk
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